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Minutes:
Chairman Freborg opened the hearing on SB 2354, a bil! relating to instruction in physical education.
All members were present.

Representative Aarsvold testified in favor of the bill. He is a former school administrator and teacher.
He advocates the additional curriculum.

Senator Triplett testified in favor of the bill. (Written testimony attached)

Mary Ann Donnay, President, North Dakota Association for Health, Physical Education, Recreation and
Dance, testified in favor of the bill. (Written testimony attached)

Senator Taylor asked about the phrasing in the bil!, is it acceptable?

Ms. Donnay said it is right on target. It is an important course. It is offered in the 9" grade in Fargo,
they use the same textbook.

Terry Eckman, Assistant Professor of Teacher Education and Human Performance, testified in favor of
the bill. (Written testimony attached)

Senator Flakol} asked how many physical education teachers they graduate each year.

Dr. Eckman said she did not know.

Kassie Krebsbach, student at Minot State University, testified in favor of the bill. (Written testimony

attached).
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. June Heman, American Heart Association, testified in favor of the bill. (Written testimony attached).

Lois Mauch, physical education teacher from Fargo, testified in favor of the bill. She was involved ina
research project that demonstrated a correlation between fitness and reading scores. Four years of

physical education allows time for personal fitness classes. Now is the time fo act.

Valerie Fischer, Director of School Health, Department of Pubiic Instruction, testified in favor of the
bill. (Written testimony attached)

Senator Flakoll asked how many schools are currently offering what is being proposed in this bill.

. Ms. Fischer said she does not know.
Senator Taylor asked how many students take it if it is offered.
Ms. Fischer said she can try to find out.
Gloria Lokken, NDEA, testified in favor of the bill. Quality physical education is important to students.
Fitness is a lifetime skill and is important for the body and brain. As a 4™ grade teacher, she used
physical activity often to help the students with their thinking.
Senator Flakoll asked about the terminology in the bill, is it clear?
Ms. Lokken said if Department of Public Instruction thinks it’s clear, she knows the kids understand it
and the text book is readily available.
Doug Johnson, North Dakota Councit of Educational Leaders, testified in opposition to the bill. (Written
testimony attached) He visited with some principals this morning, mostly from small schools. Some
already have 8 period days. With 15 students in a class, if half choose to take physical education, it

. limits the electives a student can take in a small school. It would force them to rearrange their staffing
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patterns and might have to drop some electives. Many schools already offer 4 years of physical
education. Bismarck requires ¥z unit per year.

Senator Flakoll asked about the survey results distributed by Mr. Johnson. Did the other 150 districts
agree with the bill?

Mr. Johnson said that is all that responded. He did not rerun the survey for this bill. He did not plan to

hand it out until he spoke with the principals this moming and he discovered how concemed they were.

Senator Flakoll asked when the survey was run.

Mr. Johnson said in January, 2005, it is old data used in testimony for HB 1048. That bill included
health as well. He can replicate the survey if the committee so desires.

Bev Nielson, North Dakota School Boards Association, testified in opposition to the bill. They have the
same concerns as in 2003 and 2005 which are cost, available physical space, physical education teachers
that are teaching other courses. The fit and athletic will take physical education every year, the unfit
won't.

Senator Taylor asked if there are enough dollars in SB 2200 to make a difference.

Ms. Nielson said there are 16 different bills to add coursework this session. If SB 2200 starts with $80
mitlion, and $35 million goes to equity that leaves $45 million. If TFFR passes, that is another $10
million; it starts to look like not much more than before. |f we concentrate on rigor at all, there is not

much increase. Some schools will only get 2% which will barely cover increases in salary.

Senator Flakoll asked for Ms. Fischer to come to the podium.
Senator Flakoll asked what effect this bill would have on home schooled students.
Ms. Fischer said they can take physical education in their home school setting or in their home school

district.
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. Senator Flakoll asked if it applies directly.
Ms. Fischer said no.
Chairman Freborg closed the hearing on SB 2354,
David Rochholz, Minot State University wanted to answer a previous question. At Minot State they
graduate 20 — 25 students a year in physical education, they had 24 last spring. He would guess NDSU
and UND would be higher and Valley City and Mayville would be lower.
Senator Taylor asked if he has information on placement.
Dr. Rochholz said all but 2 found jobs in their field. If you go where the jobs are, they are available.
About 80% go out of state.

Senator Gary Lee asked if they are leaving for other reasons or is it because the jobs aren't here.

Dr. Rochholz said both.

Senator Taylor said we have the outdated financial figures from Doug Johnson; how do we know which
bill needs a fiscal note? It would have been helpful with this bill.

Chairman Freborg said it would have been a guess. We could get an impact report from Department of
Public Instruction but we would need it soon.

Senator Flakoll said he is thinking of an intem project. Did HB 1048 from last session have a fiscal
note?

Senator Taylor said he does not need a fiscal note to make a decision, it would have been helpful.

Chairman Freborg said there will be an impact.
Senator Bakke said their will be an impact to small districts for text books and materials. Would it come

. out of foundation aid or should we add an appropriation?
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. Chairman Freborg said now it would come out of foundation aid. Some school districts will not get an
increase this year due to declining enroliments.
Senator Flakoll said the intem reported there was no fiscal note on HB 1048.
Chairman Freborg said it had no fiscal impact?
Senator Flakoll said its Department of Public Instruction’s call.
Chairman Freborg asked if he believes there is no fiscal impact.
Senator Flakoll said no.
Chairman Freborg said this is a real deviation from what we think of as physical education.
Senator Bakke asked why there is no fiscal note.

Chairman Freborg said he doesn't know. It should show the impact to the districts. Some fiscal notes

. are so far off, it is unbelievable.

Senator Flakoll said there are two challenges to writing a fiscal note, the Department of Public
Instruction doesn't who is currently offering this and there could be a savings on the Human Services
budget if there was an increase in fitness. It is a challenge to put together.

Senator Flakoll said he will offer no amendments.

Senator Bakke said she is 100% behind the concept; she is concerned about the additional cost.

Chairman Freborg said it is already viewed as an unfunded mandate.

Senator Flakol! said the FTE dollars would be available.

Senator Taylor said the personal fitness based course might be more appropriate in a heaith course.
Grand Forks uses it as physical education.

Chairman Freborg said diet was mentioned. We might curtail pop in the schools and do just as much for

. the children

Senator Flakoll moved a Do Pass on SB 2354, seconded by Senator Bakke.
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. Senator Flakoll said Bev Nielson made a point, we can offer it but we can't guess who will take it.

The motion passed 4-1-0. Senator Flakoll will carry the bill.
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Chairman Freborg opened the discussion on SB 2354.

Valerie Fischer, Department of Public Instruction, presented information to the committee
regarding schools and their physical education offerings. (Written testimony attached) Some
schools have physical education enrollment that exceeds their enroliment and that is due to
home educated students participating in physical education. The Division of Independent
Study does not show enroliment because it changes every day. 190 schools offer physical
education in grades 9 — 12 and 23,945 students are involved. That is 11,000 students short of
all students which the bill would require to have the opportunity.

Senator Taylor confirmed that 190 schools offer physical education.

Ms. Fischer said yes, this year.

Senator Gary Lee said when looking at Alexander school, it shows kids are taking it in grades
9 and 10. Does that mean they are not taking it in grades 11 and 12 or they are not offering it?
Ms. Fischer said that is a good question and she doesn’t know.,

Chairman Freborg closed the discussion of SB 2354.
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Minutes:
Senator Connie Triplett, District 18, introduced the bill. (Testimony Attached.)
Representative Hunskor: Would each student in each grade have to have available to them
this PE course?

. Senator Triplett: Yes, there should be in the curriculum each year this concept-based class
that a student can take once.
Representative Hunskor: One of the things we hear from the smaller schools is that we are
going to have to hire another PE teacher. s this going to require that many more PE classes
that the school has to put another staff person on?
Senator Triplett: That | cannot answer. It is not a requirement that every student is required
take PE year. | would imagine they would have to assess their own situation.
Representative Herbel: The qualifications for being qualified to teach this would be a major
in physical education? Has that been checked out the DPI?
Senator Triplett: | would hope so. | met with the DP1 and it was not mentioned.
Representative Herbel: If this is to be made available every four years it is conceivable then
that the person taking it could choose to take it as a senior. Could the freshmen, sophomores

. and juniors all be in that same class?
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Senator Triplett: They would offer it every year and encourage it at a lower level like 9™ or
10" grade. |did this at once in four years at the recommendation of Legislative Council to
make it possible for the smaller schools to comply.

Representative Haas: Did you consider introducing this fitness for life concept even at the
lower elementary or mid elementary level.

Senator Triplett: |did. From what | have read the activity starts falling off in terms of
choosing to be involved is most dramatic in the high school.

Representative Mueller: How big a challenge is going to be if we pass this, for folks to come
up with a curriculum that deals with this?

Senator Triplett: | don't think it will be a problem at all. There are a number of curricula out
there.

June Herman, senior advocacy director, American Heart Association, testified in favor
of the bill. (Testimony Attached.)

Amy Heuer, president-elect, ND Association fir Health, Physical Education, Recreation
and Dance, testified in favor of the bill. (Testimony Attached.) She also read the written
testimony of Lois Mauch, physical education specialist, Fargo Public Schools (attached)
and that of Terry Eckmann, associate professor Teacher Education and Human
Performance, Minot State University (attached).

Representative Karls: I'm seeing on the testimony that children spend a greater number of
hours watching television—how does that apply when kids sit in front of a computer for so
long?

Heuer: It would be some more of the same but it is a little more interactive; but you are not
getting the physical activity and your body is not producing the endorphins that help the brain.

Heuer then introduced “Position Statement Physical Education in the School” of the

Building a Healthy North Dakota Alliance, a summary of the CA Department of
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Education Study, and North Dakota Physical Education Standards and Benchmarks,
and the summary of the CDC Guidelines for School Health Programs to Promote
Physical Activity (attached).

Representative Herbel: We're changing the way we are doing PE and kids are getting fatter,
maybe we ought to go back?

Heuer: We are still trying to fight the damage that has been done the past 20-25 years.
Valerie Fisher, director of School Health, DPI, testified in favor of the bill. (Testimony
Attached.)

Representative Karls: What about the students that are active after school in basketball,
soccer, etc. It seems to me if they are also taking this in school; they are going to be dead.
Fisher: There are many students that are involved in travel and sport teams as you identify
that have very full schedules. Right now there is no correlation between that and PE received
at the school and they do not receive credit for that.

Representative Myxter: Sixty to Seventy percent of kids take PE in the summer because
they don’t want to sweat and then go back to class.

Fisher: Many schools, particularly the larger schools, do offer PE in summer and students will
take it for that very reason. They get involved in something that is very physically demanding
and they sweat and then go home. It also offers a greater a variety of the types of classes
and activities so it is a very appropriate place to offer PE.

Representative Myxter: Are there credits for PE required for graduation in ND?

Fisher: That information is not known to us because we do not require schools to report to us
what they require for graduation. The state doesn't require it.

LeAnn Nelson, NDEA, testified in favor of the bill. NDEA supports this bill. With all the

studies and research and reports on obesity and inactivity, we felt this was a good idea. We
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do realize that there may be some funding issue that comes into play with this and we hope
that the state would help fund those that need to hire additional staff.

Mary Wall, ND Council of Educational Leaders, testified in Opposition to the bill.
(Testimony Attached.)

Representative Hanson: In a few days we will have SB 2309 up, are you going to support it
or be in opposition to it.

Wahl: Our position is that it is premature until it becomes a part of the whole adequacy study.
Representative Mueller: You referenced resolution 3046 and other things that speak to
where you think we are going to be—adequacy is a good point. Can you imagine if some of
these other issues you referenced would be against the language in this bill?

Wahl: We just feel the language in this bill is inadequate to address the entire problem. Itis
premature because we have not fully determined what an adequate education is. Secondly,
we think it is a mistake to go forward passing legislation under the assumption that the problem
is that we just don't have enough PE offered at the high school level. We think the problem is
much larger than that and we thing the study would substantiate that claim. We need to go
forward with in a more collaborative effort with all the people that have a stake in this.
Representative Mueller: | don't disagree with you at all about any of the points you are
making. The fact is this is the Education Committee and we control only certain things and
this one area that we do have some say in and that's why it is here before us today.
Representative Hunskor: If what you say is true and we’ve got this broad spectrum to work
on. This is part of the answer so why wouldn’t we begin with this. It would not be wise to
throw this out. We do need this; it's going to be part of the answer.

Wahl: We have two thrusts in my presentation. One is that this is premature in the sense

that until we know what an adequate education is that it is premature to be talking about

adding 3 units of PE. Secondly, do we really know that this legislation is going to be part of a
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comprehensive plan to address the problem? If you are really going talk about PE in high
school addressing the problem, then perhaps we need to talk about requiring PE as opposed
to offering it.

Doug Johnson, executive director, ND Council of Educational Leaders, testified in
Opposition to the bill. (Testimony Attached.) He also distributed the results of a survey
taken of superintendents across the state {(attached).

Representative Hanson: Are you going to run the same survey on 2309. It's going to cost a
lot more than this.

Johnson: No. We are not going to take a position against that. You are right, that will cost
a lot more.

Representative Hunskor: It would seem to me that the concept-based PE should be a
requirement. If our aim is to keep them healthy after they get out of school, then in their brain
they should know how to do that.

Johnson: | do know that most of the school districts require four % units of PE and they have
concept-based programs. | think that happens in many of these course offerings already.
Bev Nielson, ND School Boards Association: | will agree with Doug’s comments.

Brian Nelson, superintendent, Lewis & Clark School District, testified in opposition to
the bill. Our district is opposed to this. It seems unclear to me. In 2006 | looked at myself
and saw how overweight | was. So | changed some things—diet and exercise. | hear nothing
mentioned about diet. If you look at our school hot lunch programs that make sure there is no
fat being served. We have a PE teacher that teaches K through 12 grade—240 kids. She
sees those children each day. She doesn’t have any more room to add on to the schedule.
We offer activities that the DPI will not let us give credit for. Parents need to model behavior.

Be careful about pinpointing PE, diet is a big part. This bill seems so unclear and | don't think

this is not a good bill for kids. | don’t think it's going to solve the problem.
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Chaiman Kelsch opened discussion of SB 2354.

Representative Johnson: Physical Education is fine but we need to look at a lot more than
PE, look at the hot lunches and pop (after school), etc. The small schools that | have been in
contact with are concerned extra positions and room available. I'm going to resist this bill.
Vice Chairman Meier: We did get the pop machines out. We shouldn't have to worry about
pop.

Representative Johnson: They are open after school for those activities.

Chaiman Kelsch: | found it interesting and we can hold off on this bill if you would like to. 1
found it interesting because there were a lot of superintendents that really didn’t care if it's
offered or not because a lot of them are currently doing so. | find some of the arguments a
little bit interesting when they say they would have to offer fewer academic classes. That was
kind of a bad one. The other was “almost all of our students are in sports and we don't feel we
should have to reduce our academic offerings.” 1 understand that kids are in sports, but not all

kids are in sports and I'm not sure all kids put the same effort forward and you actually have

some book learning when you are in a class and not when you are in sports.

( .Representative Herbel: What is preventing schools from doing this without legislation?
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Chairman Kelsch: My guess is that a lot of the larger school districts are probably doing this.
. Again it goes back to the disparity between offerings between a large school district and a

small school district. They could do it now.

Representative Hunskor: Isn’'t the personal fitness end of it covered somewhat in health

classes. Don’t they have to take a half unit of health already?

Representative Haas: \We would have to look at the benchmarks and standards.

Representative Johnson: As Representative Myxter pointed out, you could fit this in the

summer program. The other argument that the ones getting exercise are more aggressive in

learning, | think you will find that the ones that are aggressive and active are the ones are the

ones that participate.

Representative Hanson: Was anything every brought up about co-ed phy ed? If you only
. have 3 boys and 10 girls, you can have one class.

Chaiman Kelsch: [ think a lot of the classes are co-ed.

Representative Mueller: Amy Heuer spoke to the Bismarck program that they are on line with

and moving ahead with. The implication there is that it is different than the health unit. | think

there are other things that happen and need to happen in that one out of four years that talks

about healthy life styles. Certainly they are connected but | imagine there is a different

approach and there's a different curriculum. | think that’s a really strong piece of this bill.

Representative Herbel: Do you think once every four years is often enough to be effective.

Chairman Kelsch: That was a concern for me but | understand why they did it that way—to try

to ease some of the concerns of the small school districts. | wonder if the JPAs are doing

anything with PE as far as offering some things interactively. [ think that would one that was

fairly simple to do because they have personal fitness on TV all the time.

iBev Nielson: | imagine they could do it but it wouldn’t be free.
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Representative Wall: The JPA in my area offers PE in the summer. Last year 190 kids
. participated.
Chairman Kelsch: What they do in Mandan is take the swimming part in the summer because
the girls don’t want to have the wet hair in class.
Representative Myxter: This is all voluntary, none of it is required. So if they have a choice
between taking a phy ed class of swimming versus sitting in a class being told what they are to
eat, what are they going to sign up for. How many will voluntarily sign up for a class that’s
going to tell them how to eat or exercise if they can go play volleyball, golf, biking.
Representative Karls: My concern too is that if you weigh this against academic, band is the
one that suffers.
Vice Chairman Meier: It is unfortunate that we have come to an era in our lifetime where being
. overweight is an issue and health is an issue. | know that it should start from home but | see
this bill and | know that Bismarck currently does offer what is in this bill. | support that. | think
that whatever we can do to encourage healthy living for our youth is very important.
Representative Wall: It was brought up when we address adequacy, this would be
addressed. When adequacy is dealt with will PE be dealt with?
Chairman Kelsch: When we talked about adequacy during the P-16 meetings this summer,
PE was just kind of mentioned it wasn't really talked about. | think when most people talk
about adequacy they kind of forget about the arts, music, PE. They talk about math, science,
etc. Sometimes there are areas that overlooked. It is an appropriate time to be tooking at it
but | think this is the area is glossed over. | believe a well-balanced student has all of these in
their curriculum every year. We can't just have the math, science, English; we have to have all
of these. | am probably going to support this bill and the reason is that | was told by a

.constituent that every one of us should have to have body mass index published in the

newspaper.
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Representative Hunskor: It seems what should come out of here is what's going to stick in a
kid's mind so they have a better healthy life style when they get out of high school. Just to
make PE for 4 years or offer it for 4 years; they can have their fun but when they get out of
school has that encouraged them to continue with that. Then we get back to the concept thing
where they get into a classroom and see why and what you should eat—just being active
doesn’t mean they are going to carry it over and continue it that way.

Representative Mueller: | move a Do Pass.

Vice Chairman Meier: | second.

A roll call vote was taken: Yes: 8, No: 5, Absent: 0.

Representative Mueller will carry the bill.
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Senate Bill 2354 N4
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Chairman Freborg and members of the committee, my name is Connie Triplett, Senator
from District 18 in Grand Forks. I am pleased to sponsor SB 2354, relating to physical
education instruction in the high school curriculum.

February 6, 2007 aj(*“J |

This bill requires that high schools in our state make available to students at least one-
half unit of physical education in each year. In addition, at least once every four years,
the physical education unit must be a concept-based fitness class that includes instruction
in the assessment, improvement, and maintenance of personal fitness.

I'will freely acknowledge that there is not an original thought in this bill. Those of you
who have been here awhile will recognize the half-unit per year. It was in the statute
once and then was removed. The notion of the concept-based class I got from Dr. Mark
Sanford, Superintendent of the Grand Forks Public Schools. He tells me that he got the
idea from the fact that several other states are now requiring such classes. I asked for a
copy of the policy that Grand Forks is working on and it seemed like such a great idea to
me that [ decided I had an obligation to share it in this legislative session.

I am aware that there was opposition to the idea of a half-unit of physical education from
some smaller schools last session, but my recollection is that the opposition was based
largely on a perceived lack of resources by some schools. Since we are all working
diligently this session to increase resources to schools in a significant way, I am hoping
that the opposition will be more muted than it was last session.

Also, the looming health care crisis caused by so many obese and inactive young people
is becoming clearer every day. The early onset of type II diabetes is one of the most
alarming facts of life in America to me. There are others here today who can describe the
health needs of our youth in more detail, but I would ask you to flip through the
curriculum proposal from Grand Forks to get an idea of what I mean by a “concept-based
fitness class”.

In Grand Forks they are proposing to require this class at the ninth-grade level. They
plan to offer the class every year to ninth graders. This bill, on the other hand, only
requires that such a class be offered once every four years. That is in recognition of the
fact that smaller schools may not be able to offer every class every year. My hope would
be that most schools would consider offering this class at least once every two years so
that students could take it in ninth or tenth grade, when I think it would be more useful
than it would be later.

Thank you for considering this idea.



2006-07 Physical Education Curriculum Proposal |
“Fitness for Life”

Introduction:

The high schools of Grand Forks Public Schools are proposing that a conceptual physical
education class be required at both high schools. The class is designed to be a :
classroom/lab based class which will focus on the concepts of fitness. Students would be
required to complete the class in the ninth grade year. This class will replace the Physical
Education I (Freshman PE) course. After students complete the “Fitness for Life” class,
they will complete their remaining PE credits in classes that they choose (selectives).

Rationale:

Physical activity participation is very low among adults in the United States. Lack of
physical activity in adults is associated with an increase in chronic diseases and
premature death. Research indicates the steepest decline in activity participation occurs
during the high school years. According to the Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance System
Survey, more than one-third of young people in grades 9-12 do not regularly engage in
vigorous physical activity. While, 43 percent of students in grades 9-12 watch television
more than two hours per day. Furthermore, girls are significantly less likely than boys to
participate regularly in vigorous physical activity. Vigorous physical activity was
defined as exercise that made the respondent sweat and breathe hard for at least 20
minutes on 3 or more of the 7 days preceding the survey.

(SOURCE: Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance System, CDC, NCCDPHP).

In addition, the rates of obesity and diabetes continue to increase in America’s children
and teens. The overweight and obesity epidemic is not limited to adults. What is
particularly alarming is that the percentage of young people who are overweight has
almost doubled in the last 20 years for children aged 6-11 and almost tripled for
adolescents aged 12-19. In children and adolescents, overweight has been defined as a
sex- and age- specific BMI at or above the 95th percentile for a reference population,
based on Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) growth charts as reported in
the United States Department of Health and Human Services report “Physical Activity
Fundamental To Preventing Disease” in June of 2002. Now, more than ever, the
importance of physical activity and good nutrition need to be leamned and used as
preventive medicine.

Purpose:

The purpose of the “Fitness for Life” class is to help students become informed,
independent decision makers. It will help students become capable of planning for
enjoyable lifetime fitness and physical activity while achieving personal fitness and
activity goals. Conceptual based fitness classes are not new. Seven states now require a
concept based physical education class for graduation. The trend first began in 1986
when the Florida state legislature required all students complete a physical education
class focusing on the assessment, improvement, and maintenance of personal fitness.
The first personal fitness course was developed by the state of Florida to meet this

requirement.

S Thpets 23sy
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The content of the course fell into eight categories: (\

1. Knowledge of the importance of physical fitness.

2. Assessment of the health related components of physical fitness.

3. Knowledge of health problems associated with inadequate fitness levels.

4. Knowledge and application of biomechanical and physiological principles to
improve and maintain the health related components of physical fitness.
Knowledge of safety practices associated with physical fitness.

6. Knowledge of the psychological values of physical fitness, including stress
management. :

7. Knowledge of how sound nutritional practices relate to physical fitness.

8. Knowledge of consumer issues related to physical fitness.

w

Student surveys showed the students who took the fitness concepts course remained more
active after taking the class. There was an increase in student enroilment in physical
education electives and students continued to be active even after leaving high school.
This is what we want for the students of Grand Forks Public Schools.

The “Fitness for Life” class will help students accomplish three main objectives.

1. Acquire knowledge of fitness benefits and principles: Students will learn
concepts of personal fitness. They will leam the value and benefits of physical - .
activity in reducing risk or various diseases and physical conditions and in
promoting health and wellness. They will learn the benefits of the five ’
components of health related fitness (muscular strength, cardiovascular
endurance, flexibility, muscular strength, and body composition) and the
principles of overload, progression, and specificity and how to apply them by
using the FIT formula (frequency, intensity, and time) to determine how much
exercise is enough.

2. Acquire and use self-management skills: Self-management skills can be learned
and with practice, used to promote heaithy lifestyles. The management skills
learned will include self-assessment, goal setting, self-monitoring, self-planning,
and time management.

3. Become physically active and build fitness: this class will teach students the
types of physical activities that are most beneficial to build all parts of fitness.

Students will be exposed to and leam the differences between lifestyle physical
activity, active acrabics, active sports and recreation, exercises for flexibility, and
exercises for strength and muscular endurance, along with rest or inactivity.

We believe the development of this class will enhance the opportunities for teaching the

National, North Dakota, and Grand Forks Public Schools standards and benchmarks. The

students will have a solid scope and sequence for the semester. We believe once students

understand the “whys” of physical fitness and activity they will make positive choices to

stay active. Students will have a better understanding of the knowledge and how it J
affects their lives because classroom lessons can be put into immediate practice on (
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activity days in the gym and lab. This class will help students plan their own personal
fitness program. We want the students to move from just doing exercise to people who
are active and responsible for their own fitness for a lifetime.

How will this change our curriculum?

With the approval of the “"Fitness for Life” class the Physical Education II and III classes
will need to be modified. Once the students have learned the concepts of fitness they will
be allowed to select appropriate classes based on individual interests rather than taking
general physical education classes.

We intend to call these classes “selectives” because the students will be required to take a
specified number of classes rather than choosing to take electives, The selective classes
will be developed during the 2006-07 school year and will be presented for approval to
the Review Committee in the fall of 2007-2008.

This revision in the overall curriculum will still require the student to complete 1.5
credits of physical education for graduation.

What will the school district need to provide?

The following is a list of items that will need to be provided by the district for the success
of this class,

Classroom

Textbook for each student

Ancillary materials for text series

Support materials for lab activities

Teacher training
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“Fitness For Life”

Course Description

Fitness for Life is a one half credit required course that focuses on the benefits of fitness.

It promotes knowledge of fitness benefits and principles, the acquisition and use of self-
management skills, and provides opportunities for students to be physically active while
building fitness.

Course Objectives:

1. Acquire knowledge about the benefits of physical activity to health and wellness
and about the principles of fitness.

2. Acquire and use self~-management skills to promote lifelong physical activity.

Become physically active while pursuing goals to become physically fit.

4. Become an independent decision maker who can plan his or her own personal
fitness program.

w2

Course QOutline: (Taken from Human Kinetics fifth edition text Fitness for Life by
Charles B. Corbin and Ruth Lindsey)

Unit 1  Getting Started
A. Fitness and Wellness for All
Starter workout
- Fitness for Life
Exercise Basics
Fitness through physical activity
Learning to self-assess
Health- and skill- related fitness stunts

mepo oe

B. Safe and Smart Physical Activity

Fitness games

Getting ready for physical activity

FitnessGram1 self assessment Strength and Muscular endurance
Physical activity and injury

Building self-confidence

Recognizing and resolving conflict in new activities

Safe exercise circuit

N N R

C. Benefits of Physical Activity
a. Cooperative games
b. Health and wellness benefits
¢. Healthy back test

-
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d. Healthy back and good posture
e. Reducing risk factors
f. Back exercise circuit

Unit I Becoming and Staying Physically Active

A. How Much is Enough?

Line exercise

How much physical activity is enough?
Assessing your posture

How much fitness is enough?
Choosing good activity

Circuit workout

WO Ao o

B. Leaming Self-Management Skills

Fitness trail

Learning Self-management skills

FitnessGram 2- Body composition and flexibility
Goal setting

Elastic Band Exercise circuit

cac o

C. Lifestyle Physical Activity and Positive Attitudes
School stepping

Activities for a lifetime-choices from the pyramid
Walking test

Attitudes

Building positive attitudes

Walking for wellness

o oo

Unit ITI Physical Activity Pyramid: Level 2 Activities

A. Cardiovascular Fitness

Aerobic dance routine

Cardiovascular fitness facts

Cardiovascular fitness-step test and one-mile run
Building cardiovascular fitness

Learning to self-monitor

Cardiovascular fitness-how much is enough?

Mo po o

B. Active Aerobics and Recreation
a. Step aerobics
b. Active aerobics
c. FitnessGram 3-Cardiovascular fitness, flexibility and strength
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Unit IV

Unit V

d. Active recreation

e

Finding social support

f. Jogging: biomechanical principles and guidelines

C. Active Sports and Skill-Related Physical Fitness

o Ao

Orienteering

Skills and Skill-related fitness
Assessing skill-related fitness
Active sports

Building performance skills
Resolving conflict in sports

Physical Activity Pyramid: Level 3 Activities

A. Flexibility

oo o

Jump and stretch routine

Flexibility facts

Arm, leg, and trunk flexibility
Improving flexibility

Building intrinsic motivation

The basic 10: Flexibility exercise circuit

B. Muscle Fitness: Basic Principles and Strength

®eoAs TR

Partner resistance exercises

Muscle fitness basics

Determining a modified 1 rep max and grip strength
Building strength

Preventing relapse

Developing and enforcing rules

Fundamentals of Weight and resistance training

C. Muscle Fitness: Muscular Endurance and General Muscle Fitness
Information

o po o

Homemade weights

Improving muscular endurance
Muscle fitness

Managing time

Muscular endurance exercise circuit

Healthy Choices

A. Body composition

a.

b.

Exercise Circuit
Facts about body composition

T
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Skinfold measurements and height-weight charts
Controlling body fatness

Improving physical self-perceptions

Muscle fitness exercises with resistance machines

~ o Ao

B. Choosing Nutritious Food
Jollyball

A Healthy diet

Body measurements
Making food choices
Saying “no”
Cooperative aerobics

Mo a0 oe

C. Making Consumer Choices

Continuous rhythmical exercise

Health and fitness quackery

Reassessing body composition, flexibility, and strength
Evaluating health clubs, equipment, media and internet materials
Learning to think critically

Isometric exercise circuit

Mo po TP

Unit VI Wellness and Personal Program Planning

A. A Wellness Perspective

Cooper’s aerobics

All about health and wellness

Reassessing cardiovascular fitness and muscular endurance
Wellness

Healthy lifestyles and environment

Thinking success

Your health and fitness club

@me o op

B. Stress Management

Frisbee golf

Facts about stress

Identifying signs of stress

Managing stress

Controlling competitive stress

Relaxation exercises for stress management

me e TR

C. Personal Program Planning
a. Exercising at home
b. Program planning
¢. Evaluating your personal program
d. Staying fit and active
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. e. Overcoming barriers (

f. Sticking with a plan
g. Performing you plan
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Good morning Chairman Freborg and members of the committee, My name is
Mary Ann Donnay from Fargo. T am the President of the North Dakota
Association of Health, Physical Education, Recreation and Dance and a
teacher of Physical Education. I am here in support of Senate Biil 2354, This
bill will allow High School students in North Dakota the opportunity to have
physical education as a part of their course studies every year in high school.

Learning about healthy habits and putting them into practice begins in the
physical education classroom. Habits which can increase students' life
expectancy, reduce their risk of diabetes, heart disease, obesity,
osteoporosis and other health risks associated with a sedentary life style.

Physical Education in North Daketa today is not your parents’ physical
education. It may not even be YOUR physical education. Physical Education
has changed greatly over the past 20 years. The emphasis is on
EDUCATION.

During physical education classes, we EDUCATE students about the
components of fitness, nutrition, teamwork, respect for oneself and others
and developing healthy habits for a lifetime.

Students are educated THROUGH the physical. We educate and assess
students using State Standards which include: Movement Forms, Maintaining
Physical Fitness, Behavior and Physical Activity and Benefits of Physical
Activity, We measure those standards against benchmarks Jjust like any
other Academic curriculum area.



We educate using technology. Students self-assess their progress using
pedometers, Tri-Fit Computer programs which allow individual students to
track their current fitness levels and create and monitor their future
fitness goals. We use heart rate monitors which allow Physical Education
teachers to get every child in the class to work at his/her own target heart
rate, challenging everyone including the overweight or physically
uncoordinated child to meet realistic, fulfilling goals.

High school Physical Education programs offer the best opportunity to
provide physical activity to all children and to teach them the skills and
knowledge needed to establish and sustain an active lifestyle and health
habits. Physical education teachers assess student knowiedge, motor and
social skills, and provide instruction in a safe, supportive environment.

Physical education should not be compared to, or confused with, other
physical activity experiences such as intramural or recreational endeavors. A
quality physical education program provides learning opportunities,
appropriate instruction, meaningful and challenging content for all children
(see Addendum). Students do learn skills for lifetime activities such as;
social dance, golf, tennis, bicycling, snowshoeing and outdoor recreation but
learning these skills follows a developmentally appropriate program with
regular assessment to monitor and reinforce student learning.

Physical Education in North Dakota educates across the curriculum by
incorporating other academic areas in oyr physical education units. Physical
Education is an interdisciplinary subject and can reinforce learning in other
subject matter,

As the president of North Dakota AHPERD, T am asking you to consider the
future of our youth and our state. By keeping our students' active through
regular physical education classes throughout high school, you will be allowing
them the necessary opportunities to become better students and more
productive citizens for the state of North Dakota. T would like to ask the
Education Committee for a “"pass” recommendation for Senate Bill 2354,
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Quality Physical Education should include:

Opportunity to Learn

Instructional periods totaling 150 minutes per week(elementary) and
225 minutes per week (middle and high school)

Qualified physical education teachers providing a developmentally
appropriate program

Teacher/student ratio in physical education no greater than 1:25
(elementary) and 1:30 (middle/high school)

Adequate equipment and facilities for all students to be active at the
same time

Appropriate Instruction

Full inclusion of all students

Maximum participation and ample practice opportunities for class
activities

Well-designed lessons that facilitate student learning

Out of school assignments that support learning and practice of
learned skills

Appropriate discipline and class management (physical activity should
never be used as punishment)

Use of regular assessment to monitor and reinforce student learning

Meaningful Content

Instruction in a variety of motor skills that are designed to enhance
the physical, mental, and social/emotional development of every child
Fitness education and assessment to help children understand,
improve and/or maintain their physical well-being

Development of cognitive concepts about motor skill and fitness
Opportunities to improve emerging social and cooperative skills
through physical activity and gain a multi-cultural perspective
Promotion of recommended amounts of physical activity now and
throughout life

Source—National Association for Sport and Physical Education (NASPE)
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North Dakota Physical Education Standards

Standard 1 Students demonstrate proficiency in motor skills
and movement patterns needed to perform a variety of physical
activities.,

Standard 2 Students understand and apply movement
concepts, principles, strategies, and tactics to learn and perform
physical activities.

Standard 3 Students participate in regular physical activity.

Standard 4 Students understand and apply fitness concepts
to achieve and maintain a health-enhancing level of physical
fitness.

Standard 5 Students exhibit responsible personal and social

behavior in physical activity settings.
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Good Morning Chairman Freborg and members of the Senate Education Committee. My
name is Terry Eckmann and I serve as a professor preparing physical education teachers
and corporate fitness majors at Minot State University. Iam here today with Minot State
colleagues and students to testify in support of Senate Bili 2354 and ask for your support
in increasing the requirement of physical education to 1/2 credit per year in North Dakota
High Schools. : y

As a physical educator and fitness leader for over 25 years, I am passionate about the
need for physical education to increase levels of physical activity for a healthy body and
brain, increase knowledge of healthy lifestyles, and promote a positive attitude about the .
importance of regular exercise in overall health and well-being. My testimony will focus
on the importance of regular exercise for a healthy brain, :

- Regular exercise is essential for a healthy mind and body. I recently attended a Brain and

Learning conference in Boston, Massachusetts. Top brain researchers from prominent
Universities focused on the need for regular exercise to enhanceé learning. Exercise
optimizes learning in three ways; (1) Heightens ability of systems to functions more
efficiently and effectively (2) Enhances the ability of brain.cells to connect and (3) p
promotes brain cell growth. ' ' ‘ :

Exercise increases the number of neurons in the brain and the levels of Brain Derived
Neurotropic Factor (BDNF), which helps neurons to communicate with one another.
Increased neuronal connections improve learning and working memory. It is believed that
sitting for 20 minutes of longer decreases the flow of BDNF causing the braia to
downshift. The key to getting smarter is growing more and stronger connections in the

brain. Exercise is like miracle-grow for the brain (1991).

Exercise also increases neurotransmitters that bring giucose, proteins, and oxygen to the
brain. These neurotransmitters include dopamine, serotonin, and norepinephrine. They
increase ability of the brain to focus and pay attention while decreasing drowsiness and

stress. ,Increasing the levels of physical activity during the school day is key to preparing

the brain for learning!
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Exercise also fuels the brain withhoxygen providing essential nutrients. The brain uses
one-fifth of the bodies’ oxygen. Regular aerobic exercise increases capillary density in
the brain increasing blood avallablhty to the brain. : -

" Thereis a growing body of resear_ch linking physical activity in phyéical education

classes with better academic achievement. The California Department of Education
conducted a study that shows a distinct relationship between academic achievement and
physical fitness of California’s public school students. The study individually matched
scores from the spring 2001 Stanford Achievement Test with results of the state-
mandated physical fitness test (Fitnessgram) given in 2001 to students in 5®, 7, and 9®
grades. In the study, reading and mathematics scores were matched with fitness scores of
353,000 5" graders, 322,000 7* graders, and 279,000 9" graders. Findings indicated that
higher achievement was associated with higher levels of fitness at each of the three grade
levels. In another study, students who exercise 75 minutes or more a week demonstrate
better thinking and memory (Michaud and Wild, 1991). In another study children
engaged in daily physical education showed superior motor fitness, academic
performance and attitude toward school as compared to their counterparts who did not
participate in physical education (Pollatschek and Hagen, 1996). A physical educator in
Chicago provided a one-hour physical education class for children with low reading
scores, reading scores improved significantly (Zientarski).

Increasing the requirement of physical education in North Dakota high schools promotes
a healthy brain and body. Please consider the importance of regular exercise and its
effccts on the brain and optimizing learning as you consider Senate Bill 2354.
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Healthy North Dakota is a framework supporting North Dakotans in their efforts to make healthy
choices by focusing on wellness and prevention — in schools, workplaces, senior centers, homes and
anywhere people live, learn, work and play. Committees comprised of more than 400 North Dakotans
representing about 150 agencies, organizations and businesses from across the state are identifying
strategies to build a healthy North Dakota.

Position Statement

Physical Education in the School

Issue

Physical inactivity has contributed to an unprecedented epidemic of childhood obesity. The physical
health and well-being of North Dakota's youth must be protected by increased physical education and
physical activity in schools.

Position Adopted

All children, from pre-kindergarten through grade 12 should receive quality, daily physical education.
Schools should have physical education specialists; appropriate class sizes; and the facilities, equipment,
and supplies to deliver quality, daily physical education.

Justification
+ The percentage of young people who are overweight has doubled since 1980.

¢ Of children age 5 to 10 who are overweight, 61 percent have one or more cardiovascular disease risk
factors and 27 percent have two or more.

Through expanded physical education and physical activity in schools, the prospects for better health
among our young people will be improved significantly. They will learn behaviors and activities that
will greatly enhance a lifetime of physical activity. Newly designed physical education courses focus on
teaching young people the lifestyles and behaviors that will enhance their physical fitness and quality of
life as adults.

Summary of Current Policy/Related Issues
Because each school district in North Dakota establishes its own graduation requirements, physical
education graduation requirements vary significantly across the state,

According to North Dakota Century Code 15.1-21-02, each public and nonpublic high school shall make
available to each student, one-half unit of physical education. Students could take physical education in

ninth grade or during summer school and not receive any additional fitness instruction during the rest of
their high school years. Department of Public Instruction data demonstrates a significant drop in student

participation in physical education in high school.

Schools should provide annual physical education instructional time for learning and building lifelong
fitness habits, physical competence and cognitive understanding about physical activity.

Contact for Further Information
June Herman, American Heart Association, june.herman{gheart.org, 800.437.9710

Prepared by the Healthy North Dakota Physical Activity Committee and pending approval of all Healthy North Dakota partners.

Terrey Echksrn,

2/6/2007
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Good morning Chairman Freborg and members of the Senate Education Committee. My name is Kassie
Krebsbach and I am a student at Minot State University majoring in Physical Education and Corporate
Fitness. 1am here today to support the passing of Senate Bill 2354 and ask for the committee’s support as
well.

My passion for physical fitness started at a young age. I believe my excitement about wellness partially
originated from my physical education classes themselves. I was initially exposed to the concept of
fitness, wellness, and a healthy lifestyle through these classes.

Physical fitness is a tremendously important topic. Much of our youth is living a sedentary lifestyle and
eating unhealthy diets, which is why physical education should be a top priority in schools across the
country. Physical education is the only means of exercise for many. Students drive to school, sitin a
classroom most of the day, and then go home and watch television or play video games at night. The only
physical activity many of them do during the whole week is in their physical education classes.

America has the highest obesity rate of any country. Clearly, this is reason enough to be supporting
physical education in schools. If people start trying to be fit too late in life, they are going to encounter
what feels like an uphill battle. It is essential to instill the importance of physical activity into people at a
young age.

When exposed to this activity and these healthy concepts as children, it is more likely to become a habit; a
way of life. Motivation is what gets you started, habit is what keeps you going.

Students need physical education classes to teach them the basics on how to be healthy. These classes do
not only consist of organized sports, but are also teaching them activities for life. Many people die in the
United States due to physical inactivity and poor diet. We need to be taught early on how to live a healthy
lifestyle. When exposed to a concept at a young age, one is much more likely to carry it over into their
adult life. Ibelieve we can truly make even more of a difference by increasing physical education in
schools.

I would like to end with a quote from Ben Franklin:
“While we may not be able to control all that happens to us, we can control what happens inside us.”
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Chairman Freborg, members of the Senate Education Committee. My name is June Herman,
and I am the Senior Advocacy Director for the American Heart Association. Iam here today
to testify in support of Senate Bill 2354, and ask for a “do pass” recommendation from this

committee.

The epidemic of obesity in children and adolescents convinces us that an approach is needed
that will reach a majority of our children and adolescents. Through schools, virtually all of
our youth can be reached, and through youth, both parents and teachers may also be reached.
Through their courses, school schedules, menus and vending-machine sales, schools have

huge influence and responsibility, with children spending 2,000 hours a year in school.

The rapid increase in the prevalence of obesity in young people has occurred at the same time
as other alarming trends:

* Between 1991 and 2003 the percentage of high school students enrolled in dally
physical education decreased from 41.6 percent to 28.4 percent.

* Physically active transport to and from school has declined from previous generations.
Today only one-third of students who live within one mile of school walk or bike
there; and less than 3 percent of students living within two miles of school walk or
bike there.

In North Dakota, the percentage of high school students participating in physical education
classes one or more days a week dropped from 64 percent in 1992 to 55 percent in 2005. In
addition, in 2005, 72 percent of high school freshman reported participating in physical
education classes one or more days a week, compared to only 35 percent of seniors." (2005
YRBS)

American Heart Association » Advocacy Depariment
PO Box 1287 Jamestown, ND 58402
Phone 701-252-5122 or 1-800-437-9710 » Fax 701-251-2092

www.americanheart.org




Expanding waistlines are even squeezing the bottom line of the nation's schools, as poor
eating and exercise subtly strip money from education. With 9 million overweight
schoolchildren, a numbser that has tripled since 1980, there is a new study which may give

education leaders a traditional motivation for making changes: money.

Based on a study of 9 states, all which provide state money based on student attendance,
those schools have lost dollars because of absenteeism, a problem caused in part by the poor
nutrition and inactivity of those missing school — costing tens of millions of dollars.
Unhealthy lifestyles by students and facuity lead to other hidden costs, from lower worker
productivity to the added expenses of helping students who have fallen behind.

The American Heart Association has sought a number of important partnerships and venues
to address the childhood obesity issue — from working with national beverage and snack
industry leaders to change school vending options, partnering in special youth and parent
initiatives such as Let’s Just Play which engaged Nickelodeon with a programming blackout,
and utilizing Governor Huckabee and Sesame Street characters for messaging. Another
initiative underway with the Robert Wood Johnson foundation is the placement of regional
Healthy School Program manager to work with groups of schools to improve the “school”
worksite environment for employees and students. This is similar to placing a position
within a ND Joint Power Agreement consortium to assist a group a districts. Attached to my
testimony is an article on the Healthy School Program project.

Still, a critical element that can’t be overlooked is ensuring that we establish North Dakota
education requirements for graduation that include a strong program of physical education for
all students. To aide you in your committee work, I’ve attached the following:
* A summary on the scientific statement “Promoting Physical Activity in Children and
Youth: A Leadership Role for Schools”, published in Circulation: Journal of the
American Heart Association

» Editorials generated last session on PE in North Dakota schools
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American Heart
Associations
- American Heart Association scientific statement: Learn and Live..

Schools should take the lead in increasing kids’ activity

DALLAS, Aug. 15— The American Heart Association recommends that schools lead the way to
ensure that all children and youth participate in adequate physical activity during the school day. The
scientific statement “Promoting Physical Activity in Children and Youth: A Leadership Role for
Schools” is published in Circulation: Journal of the American Heart Association.

“Children and youth spend a substantial number of their waking hours in school, so it’s important
that schools provide adequate physical activity” said Russell R. Pate, Ph.D., chair of the writing group
and a professor of exercise science at the University of South Carolina in Columbia, S.C.

“Although schools are under increasing pressure to increase student scores on standardized tests,
the recent dramatic rise in the prevalence of obesity in children and adolescents in the United States
suggests that there is a pressing need for the nation’s schools to systematically and effectively
promote behaviors that will prevent the development of overweight,” the authors write.

During the past 20 years obesity rates in U.S. children and youth have increased markedly, the
writing group said. Today, among children ages 6-11 years old, 15.8 percent are overweight (>95
percentile body mass index [BMI] for age) and 31.2 percent are overweight or at risk for overweight
(> 85" percentile BMI for age.) Among adolescents ages 12-19 years old, 16.1 percent are
overweight and 30.9 percent are overweight or at risk for overweight.

While most states require that students receive minimal amounts of physical education (PE), and
daily physical education is recommended by many entities, the rapid increase in the prevalence of
obesity in young people has occurred at the same time as other alarming trends:

* Between 1991 and 2003 the percentage of high school students enrolled in daily physical
education decreased from 41.6 percent to 28.4 percent.

*» Physically active transport to and from school has declined from previous generations. Today
only one-third of students who live within one mile of school walk or bike there; and less than
3 percent of students living within two miles of school walk or bike there.

In addition, the statement notes that only 8 percent of elementary schools, 6.4 percent of
middle/junior high schools, and 5.8 percent of senior high schools provided daily physical education
or allocated the recommended amount of time per week (150 minutes for elementary and 225 minutes
for junior and senior high schools), according to a year 2000 study.

“It’s important that kids adopt active lifestyles,” Pate said. “The list of negative health outcomes
associated with physical inactivity — including heart disease and type 2 diabetes — is growing.”

The scientific statement takes a comprehensive look at the state of physical education, from the
amount of time students should be active each week to enhancements in the college education of
physical education (PE) teachers.



“It doesn’t mean backing down on academics — it’s not an either/or thing. A balanced academic

program should include PE and should also incorporate strategies to increase physical activity
throughout the school day,” Pate said. “Physical activity shouldn’t stop at PE class.”
The policy and practice recommendations are:

1.

Schools should ensure that all children and youth participate in a minimum of 30 minutes of
moderate-to-vigorous physical activity during the school day, plus the option of extra-
curricular and school-linked community programs.

Schools should deliver evidence-based health-related PE programs that meet national
standards to students at all school levels. These programs should include moderate-to-
vigorous physical activity for at least 50 percent of class time, as well as teach students the
motor and behavioral skills needed to engage in life-long physical activity.

States and school districts should ensure that PE is taught by certified and highly qualified PE
teachers at all school levels. :

States should hold schools accountable for delivering PE programs that meet national
standards for quality and quantity (i.e., age-appropriate amounts of time per week spent
active during class). Each state should include physical education in its core curriculum and
instructional quality.

Schools should provide clubs, lessons, intramural sports and interscholastic sports programs
that meet the physical activity needs and interests of all students.

Schools should promote walking and bicycling to school. School leaders should work with
local government to ensure safe routes to school.

Child development centers and elementary schools should provide children with at least 30
minutes of recess each day,

Schools should provide evidence-based health education programs emphasizing behavioral
skills focused on increasing physical activity and decreasing sedentary behaviors.

Colleges and universities should provide programs that produce teachers who are highly
qualified to deliver evidence-based physical education and health education programs.

Co-authors of the statement are Michael G. Davis, PED; Thomas N, Robinson, M.D., MPH;
Elaine J. Stone, Ph.D., MPH; Thomas L. McKenzie, Ph.D.; and Judith C. Young, Ph.D.

Editor’s note: For more information on childhood obesity and the Alliance for a Healthier generation visit;
http://www americanheart.org/presenter jhtml?identifier=3030527.

For more information on American Heart Association lobbying efforts for physical activity in schools, visit:
hitp://www.americanheart.org/presenter. jhtm!?identifier=3010854; or call 1800-AHA-USAI.
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Forum editorial: Keep gym, health in curriculum
The Forum - 01/07/2005

Officials of the North Dakota School Boards Association are as wrong as wrong can be to oppose a yearly
health and physical education requirement in public schools. At a time when youth obesity is an epidemic,
the association and its member school districts are sending the wrong message to students and families.

The half-credit "during each school year” requirement was put in place by the 2003 Legislature, in part as
recognition of the health risks associated with youth obesity. It is slated to go into effect July 1. The
requirement is necessary for school accreditation.

Some school district officials have complained they can't afford 1o offer a different health and phy-ed
curriculum for each high school grade. They would like the yearly requirement in the law removed, thus
allowing them to offer a half-credit each of phy-ed and health over four years.

Bad idea. While local control is always desirable, it sometimes stumbles {teacher pay, for examnple). In the
case of overweight kids, school districts that scrap gym and health classes are abdicating their responsibility
to the health and welfare of their students. If local districts won't do what they should do, the state - which
funds a significant share of public education - should step in.

The numbers are staggering. Some 16 percent of children and teens are overweight, says the National
Center for Health Statistics. That's triple the rate in 1980. If the trend continues, kids will continue to get
fatter and less healthy. Indeed, youth diabetes, which is associated with obesity, has increased alarmingly
among American children.

The health costs generated by obesity-related maladies far outstrip the costs of comprehensive school
physical education and health programs. Despite what the schools boards group contends, schools do have a
role and responsibility in educating children about healthy lifestyles. Physical activity in a gym and
classroom studies focusing on good health have always been parts of the curriculum in good schools as an
adjunct (or sometimes the only opportunity) to what young people learn at home.

It's nothing short of irresponsible for some school districts and their lobbying organization to minimize the
importance of physical education and health studies. The 2003 Legislature was right to approve the yearly
half-credit requirement. The 2005 session should keep it in place.

Forum editorials represent the opinion of Forum management and the newspaper's Editorial Board
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OUR OPINION: Don't let schools cut gym

Our view:: Lawmakers erred when they cut a requirement that schools must offer comprehensive health classes and aym.

When it comes to living a good life, the biggest lesson of the past 30 years may be the importance of keeping physically
active,

Too bad the North Dakota Legislature didn't get the message. Gov. John Hoeven should correct the lawmakers' mistake, and
make sure North Dakota high schools can't get away with keeping students chained to their desks.

The Senate and House both passed a bill that lets high schools offer each student one semester of health and one of physical
education. That's it: Just one sernester each of the life skills that wilt matter more to most students than geometry, worid
history, chemistry and third-year English combined.

A bill passed two years ago had mandated that high schools offer those courses every year. That would have been more like it,
as every adult in the Legislature knows. The medical literature absolutely is unanimous in the finding that almost nothing
outweighs phystcal activity when it comes to staying as healthy as possible throughout one's lifetime.

But the Senate and House bills overturned that progressive view. Many schools don't have the money to offer such courses,
the argument went. Not enocugh money to get students out the door and into a Jogging, fitness walking or other exercise
program?

Because lifetime fitness Is the issue here, not the hyperfocus on team sports that colors so many people's view of "gym." In
fact, de-emphasizing team sports for the many, many youngsters who aren't varsity athietes is the point. There's a world of
fun and rewarding exercise to be had, and you don't need to sult up in pads and a helmet to enjoy it. We can't believe it would
have broken the bank to give high school students some instruction and encouragement in working out.

But "phy ed” Is the parents’ job, some claimed. Sez who? Why is It a stretch to ask public schools to train the body, when we
so readily call upon them to train the mind?

But many youngsters would just flop right back into their La-Z-Boys after graduation, some said. Sure: And many other
youngsters would not. In fact, it's safe to say that if you compared the graduating classes of two similar schools, the students
from the school that offered four years of gym would be and stay in better shape, on average, than the students from the
school that did not.

And again, there'd be no greater gift that a school could give as far as boosting students' odds of a healthy future.

State Sen. Connie Triplett, D-Grand Forks, sald it best: "I think our schools put an enormous emphasis on organized sports,
where a few of the elite are given enormous resources to hone their physical skills. We need to be focusing on all of the kids
and helping every single one of them learn that healthy lifestyles are important.”

Gov. John Hoeven should veto the gym-kill bill. Failing that, lawmakers should resolve to revisit the issue in the interim, and
present the 2007 Legislature with a bill that tells schools to offer physical activity and a fitness focus for all.
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More gym is needed at school
By Frederic Smith for the Bismarck Tribune

The state House has passed, 75-13, and sent to the Senate a bill to relieve
public high schools from having to offer gym for one semester at each grade
level beginning next school year.

HB1048 would put the law back to where it used to be, with schools required to
make just one semester of gym available in four years.

Supporters of the bill, including some schools, argue that it makes little sense for
them to incur the extra cost when students are not required to take gym. Hazen,
for instance, would have to spend $70,000 on two new physical-education
teachers at the same time it is having to cut other staff.

For their part, opponents worry that less gym availability will contribute to the
worsening problem of obesity, diabetes and other health problems among the
young.

The Tribune agrees that it makes little sense to require schools to staff for
classes kids might not take. We also remember wistfully a day when most young
people were self-exercising, when it was one of the manifestations of the joy of
youth.

Ironically, that also was a day when gym classes were required, and made a part
of the school week all year long, every year, almost everywhere.

That is what we should get back to. The schools, after all, have our children for
most of the day. They feed them one or more meals, and there's no reason they
shouldn't be responsible for their exercise. (Especially, some would say, when
they also offer them, for profit, fattening pop and candy out of machines in
between classes.) The need can be seen as greater than ever, with so many
high schoolers running to a job right after school instead of to more healthful
recreational pursuits.

Maybe HB1048 is what needs to be done right now, a housekeeping measure to
clean up something the Legislature didn't intend two years ago. But, as indicative
of our neglect of physical education in the schools, it is poor policy.

Reasonable physical fithess should no more be an elective in high school than
math, history, science or English. That is the larger issue that needs correction
by the state.



TESTIMONY ON SB 2354
Senate Education Committee
February 6, 2007
Valerie Fischer, Director of School Health
328.4138
Department of Public Instruction

“

Chairman Freborg, members of the Senate Education Committee — I’m Valerie
Fischer, Director of School Health for the Department of Public Instruction. On
behalf of the Department, I am here to speak in support of SB 2354,

Teacher availability to teach physical education and health is substantiated by the
ND Education Standards and Practices Board (ESPB), who do not consider
physical education a teacher shortage area since there are more graduates than
openings. This is true for the past several years, as well as projections for the next
several years (ESPB, February 2007). According to data submitted by schools this
school year, there are 1122 licensed staff currently teaching with a physical
education major and 543 licensed staff teaching with a physical education minor.

In the discussions during the 2005 session, we heard concerns expressed over the
physical space issue (for some schools, the gymnasium becomes the cafeteria for
2-3 hours each day) and reports of anticipated fiscal hardship. The Department
acknowledges these may be issues for some schools and we are willing to work
with these schools to find creative ways to provide annual PE.

Legislators have acknowledged the issues surrounding youth and health - this issue
is not going away and we need to collectively address the most appropriate options
for public policy. This bill is a small step towards addressing youth obesity by
increasing physical activity —initiating life long positive habits which will move all
students towards better health. Asking schools to offer physical education every
year throughout high school helps to create a supportive infrastructure for North
Dakota’s children so that they can learn to assimilate regular physical activity into
their everyday lives.

From all that you have heard today, we believe you’ll see how critical physical
education is as part of a comprehensive curriculum. Promotion of healthy students
has long been fundamental to the educational experience. In the best interest of our
students and their health, I hope you will vote to increase physical education
offerings. This concludes my testimony supporting SB 2354. I’d be happy to
answer any questions you may have.
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Six states get an 'A’ for work against kids' obesity

POSTED: 3:23 p.m. EST, January 31, 2007

* University of Baltimore researchers rate states' anti-obesity efforts
* Six states get grade of A for overall efforts to fight obesity
* Three states get A's for focus on childhood obesity

More on CNN TV: Elizabeth Cohen brings you more on schoal districts that send
home reports on children's BMI. Watch "Paula Zahn Now." tonight 8 ET.

By Val Wadas-Willingham Adjust font size: - |+
CNN

; s - (CNN) — America is a heavy nation and getting heavier, especially young people. The

?e%";er,?csgfézﬁ;gﬂzggaggém:?} :'::hx number of overweight children aged 6-11 more than doubled the past 20 years,

child's obesity risk. according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Health experts warn that
i unless we do something to stop it, those numbers will continue to rise.

ADVERFISER LINKES ——— e Several states and cities are now taking steps to combat obesity, especially in young
Rapid Weight Loss people. Each year, the University of Baltimore Obesity Initiative grades states on their
Health and Nutrition efforts to pass obesity-reducing legislation.

Eat Loss Supplements :
Diet Plans f This year, for the first time, six states — California, lllinois, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania,

! South Carolina and Tennessee — received A's for their legislative and public-policy work

- Offici trol obesity in children. (Read the full report. :
Don't get gouged by old-fashioned phone | to control obesity in ¢ (Read the full report. @)

companies. Risk-free trial. ! ] )
www.vonage.com , Among the measures hailed were bills that:

|
$310K loan for $999/mo. Think you pay too |

. much? Calculate new payment.
whanw lowermybills. | * Require measuring and reporting of each student's Body Mass Index * Require recess

. _ . time and physical education classes
859 Up 10 4 free quotes. Serious ' * Add obesity-awareness and weight-reduction programs to school curricula

refinance requests only.

* Set nutrition standards for schools and limited vending machine access in schools

http:/ /www.cnn.com/2007/HEALTH/ diet.fitness/01/30/ obesity.report/ 2/6/2007
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Only three states — California, New York and Tennessee — earned the same grade for
their efforts to help all age groups. (Link here to overall obesity map TK Tuesday) Still,
the number of states taking steps to control the problem is climbing quickly according to
Healthy diet decisions ©» the report, helping to chip away at the $130 billion in direct medical costs caused by

; obesity each year. (Click to see how your state ranks.

In association with @§ MayoClinic.com

HEALTH VIDEO LIBRARY . Doctors and researchers are concerned because obesity can cause major health

problems, such as heart disease and Type 2 diabetes. Researchers found obese

Healih'ologg i youngsters tend to have at least one additional risk factor for heart problems later in life,
such as high blood pressure or high cholesterol.

Choosing the right diet

Kids who are overweight are also at greater risk for joint problems, poor self-esteem —
even sleep apnea. Taken together, these illnesses shorten life spans, diminish quality of
RELATED - ol el life and put a heavy burden on the public health care system.

Obesity Report Cards & Kenneth Stanton, assistant professor of finance at the Merrick School of Business at the
Interactive: Map i University of Baltimore and chair of the Obesity Initiative, thinks there are parallels
' between the battle against obesity and the battle against smoking. "The progress
reminds me of about 1991 or '92, in that certain messages about obesity are coming
SPECIAL REPORT together and gaining traction,” Stanton said. "You can look at New York City's decision
to ban trans fats as a significant victory, in that it made national news and there was little
outcry about it."

Stanton says more states will start to include school-based nutrition standards, obesity
programs and physical education classes to keep kids fit. And more school lunch rooms
esity a national threat? will replace sugary drinks with more healthful fare like juices, low-fat milk and bottled
‘active: Create-A-Plate water, says Stanton.

- iz w how much you eat? )

« Chart: Packing a punch | Seven states — Arkansas, California, lllinois, New York, Pennsylvania, Tennessee and

; West Virginia — require BMI or Body Mass Index report cards, informing parents of a
* Special Report child's risk of becoming obese.

In 2003, Arkansas was the first state to enact BMI report cards. In three years, although
the number of obese children has not dropped in that state, it has leveled off, which
researchers see as a positive sign. Zoltan Acs, co-founder of the Obesity Initiative, says
it's up to the states to get the job done. "We're seeing more of these laws coming out of
the states, and some of them are quite effective. A federal solution would be much more
difficult,” Acs said.

"Every state has a different mix of populations, a different outlook on diet and nutrition,
and so a one-size-fits-all approach simply would not be feasible."

But not everyone thinks the BMI report card is a great idea. Parents have complained
the notices are stigmatizing and damaging to a child's self-esteem. (Watch one mom's
opposition. 1=4 )

When 8-year-old Jasmine Tallman of Hyannis, Massachusetts, came home with a letter
saying she was on the verge of becoming obese, her mother, Vicki Elliott, was not
pleased. Not only did she say Jasmine was an active, healthy child who weighed only 66
pounds and had just seen her pediatrician, but she felt it was none of the school's
business to meddle in her child's weight issues. Elliott was also concerned Jasmine
would become obsessed with her weight and possibly develop an eating disorder,
because the BMI backs up society's attitude that thin is in.

“You go to the newsstand — skinny women on the front of all the covers," says Elliott. "I
want her to be healthy because it's the way to be, not because it means being skinny."

http:/ /www.cnn.com/2007/HEALTH/ diet.fitness/01/30/ obesity.report/ 2/6/2007
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Testimony on SB 2354
B

y
Dr. M. Douglas Johnson, Assistant Executive Director—NDCEL

Chairman Freborg and members of the Committee, for the record my name is Doug Johnson
and I represent the ND Council of Educational Leaders. [ am here to testify in opposition to SB
2354,

The NDCEL philosophically agrees that the offering of additional physical education and
health classes would be a benefit for our students. These courses help address issues of obesity and
the teaching of living healthy life styles. However, it is our belief that offering additional courses in
health and physical education is a choice that needs to be made at the local level, based on local
needs, and decided by the district’s ability to accommodate their choice to support these additional
classes. With the adoption of SB 2354., all school districts will have to offer a half credit of health
and a half credit of physical education each year. This, in essence, becomes an unfunded mandate
to increase the course offerings for every school that currently does not offer these course
opportunities. This will have a significant impact on school district budgets and facilities.

[n January of 2005 the NDCEL conducted a survey to determine what impact the current
law would have on school districts if % credit of physical education itu[,jgoffered during each school
year. The survey assumed that a different health and physical education course must be offered for
cach grade level Consequently, the survey asked superintendents to determine how many staff
would need to be hired to meet the current law, what the cost of those hires would be to the district,
and what other impacts such as classroom space, curriculum materials, and scheduling conflicts
would be created if they had to offer these classes each year and all students elected or were

required to take these two courses for all four years of high school.
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School superintendents representing nearly 50 school districts across our state responded to
the survey. They estimated that they would need to hire nearly 46.50 health/physical education
teachers to meet the requirement. The cost of these hiring the additional staff to meet the
requirements would be nearly $1,543,000. When asked what other impacts this would have on their
school districts, superintendents cited the scheduling conflicts, classroom space and the elimination
of electives to offer these newly required courses as the biggest obstacle they face in the
implementation of the law as it is currently written. The summarized responses from the
superintendents are included in my testimony. However, | thought some comments from

superintendents were representative of the nearly 50 that [ received and they are shared below:

“Ata time of declining enroliment it is extremely difficult to add staff and curriculum in this area. We have a good
number of students that earn more than one credit in phy ed now but with less money coming in to spend it tn this
manner does not make sense to me. At Garrison we are finding better ways to address the health and physical fitness of

our students and community.”

“...if the health dept. wants to fund the additional teachers from their budget, then we would be more than happy to

hire them.

I would like to see the health department pay for flu shots for all employees and students in each schoo! district in the
state. While | believe that this would be of great health value to all in education, | would not lobby to "tell them what to

do”. Much the same as 1 do not want them lobbying 1o tell me how (o spend my money.”

“No one ts more of an advocate for physical activity opportunities for students than I am. However, it would seem that
this very well may be one of those "societal ills” that we leave in the hands of parents (heaven forbid!) When | see
students being dropped off 10 feet from the school door instead of being allowed to walk the 6-10 blocks from home to
school, I'm not sure that families have fully realized how important it is for their kids to get some exercise. Perhaps the
Dept of health, etc. could spend some of the tobacco money or their budget to do a media and training blitz for our
parents and the public. That way perhaps our "educating” budgets could be used to meet the increased demands we face

from, among other things, NCLB.”

“Time becomes a problem as well as elective courses that are offered. Medina Public School currently requires 25
credits to graduate and that number allows for 1 credit of Phy. Ed. and a half unit of Health. If we need to offer a credit
every year we will be forced to drop our elective classes, when at this time, schools are under fire form the press and

government that we are not preparing the students for the future. What classes get eliminated, vocational, foreign



K

language, Advanced Science and Math, technical classes? Where does it all end? All the phy ed in the world is not
going to keep students from consuming chips and pop, Big Macs, super burgers etc. Where are the parents? Sorry for

venting.”

“Student schedules are already full. What class should not be offered in order for students to take a health or PE class.
We are a small school and do not have the students to make all classes offered viable. Do we place less emphasis on
music, science, math during a 7 period day so students have access to health & PE? We are not certain what type of
class will count as a Health Class. Will Health Careers be ok? If not than we need to make available another type of

health class. Where do we find the teacher time?”

“We do not have the staff to implement the law as written. Nor is there a need. Our state needs to get on the
bandwagon with the feds in all respects. The emphasis right now is on English/language arts and mathematics. We
have are hands full trying 1o staff highly qualified teachers in core subjects and elementary school. The department of
health should watch our kids in smali schools. They are constantly on the go and involved in all types of athletics and
other activities. Additional staff would cost us between $15,000 - $25,000 depending on the availability of a part time

health and PE teacher in Scranton.”

Chairman Freborg and members of the Senate Education Committee, this concludes my
testimony. 1 encourage your committee to give SB 2354.a do not pass vote. At this time [ would be

happy to answer any questions that you have in regard to my testimony.
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Testimony
Senate Bill 2354
House Education Committee

Tuesday, February 27, 2007

Madam Chairwoman Kelsch and members of the House Education Committee. My name is
June Herman, and I am the Senior Advocacy Director for the American Heart Association. [
am here today to testify in support of Senate Bill 2354, and ask for a “do pass”

recommendation from this committee.

The requirement that schools “offer” PE to our high school youth is a positive re-enforcement
each year of the importance of developing a physically active lifestyle. Schools have options
of group and individual physical activity coursed to offer students for their half-unit of credit.
School limited by facility or class instructor availability can still meet the objective of SB 2354
by utilize the concept based class for the basic course of group instruction, and utilize a variety

of other physical activity based course work that includes a variety of individual study classes.

This bill seeks to return to a basic course of instruction that once worked in all our schools —
one which engaged all of our youth in high school physical activity every year. The epidemic
of obesity in children and adolescents convinces us that an approach is needed that will reach a

majority of our children and adolescents. with children spending 2,000 hours a year in school.

The rapid increase in the prevalence of obesity in young people has occurred at the same time
as other alarming trends:
» Between 1991 and 2003 the percentage of high school students enrolled in daily
physical education decreased from 41.6 percent to 28.4 percent.
* Physically active transport to and from school has declined from previous generations.
Today only one-third of students who live within one mile of school walk or bike there;

and less than 3 percent of students living within two miles of school walk or bike there.




Expanding waistlines are even squeezing the bottom line of the nation's schools, as poor eating
and exercise subtly strip money from education. With 9 million overweight schoolchildren, a
number that has tripled since 1980, there is a new study which may give education leaders a

traditional motivation for making changes: money.

Based on a study of 9 states, all which provide state money based on student attendance, those
schools have lost dollars because of absenteeism, a problem caused in part by the poor
nutrition and inactivity of those missing school — costing tens of millions of dolfars. Unhealthy
lifestyles by students and faculty lead to other hidden costs, from lower worker productivity to

the added expenses of helping students who have fallen behind.

The American Heart Association has sought a number of important partnerships and venues to
address the childhood obesity issue. Still, a critical element that can’t be overlooked is ensuring
that we establish North Dakota education requirements that include once again a strong
program of physical education for all students. To aide you in your committee work, I've
attached the following:
e A summary on the scientific statement “Promoting Physical Activity in Children and
Youth: A Leadership Role for Schools”, published in Circulation: Journal of the
American Heart Association

» Editorials generated last session on PE in North Dakota schools

It is our hope that this committee does provide a “Do Pass” recommendation this session for
this bill as presented, or falling short of that possibility, at least pass out language that
specifically seeks movement and agreed upon data resources that would enable our state to

move forward ...or back to the days of school physical activity opportunities ...for the health

of our kids.



From a heart health perspective, we can suggest a number of areas that would fend

itself to this study work. Some of these areas of review could benefit from additional

action this session to provide you with a richness of information to benefit your review.

Subject Area

60™ Legislative
Session

Study Options

HB 1451 - School vending bill

Benefits of adding nat’l snack
and milk agreement standards
for the future

SB 2354 - one-half unit of
physical education during each
school year 9-12, once every
four years the unit must be a
concept-based fitness ciass.

The current requirement is for
schools to offer one-half unit
total for all four years of high
school.

Will some level of
school objection
justify specific
process for data and
analysis of impact?

Review information:

1} Students opting for PE

2) How the interest was
accommodated

3) ldentified barriers

SB 2309 — Establishes
graduation requirements

Require reporting of
current school board
graduation
requirements

Information will provide
important baseline data of
current school requirements

Joint Power Agreements —
would structure lend itself to
regional “Health School
Program” managers, and
alignment of state, federal,
private and community
resources/efforts for improved
school health opportunities?

AEDs in schools —
regional work on
athletic and school
AED system of
response

Consider report of the Healthy
School Program initiative,
funded by the Robert Wood
Johnson Foundation, with
Alliance for a Healthier

Generation.
hitp://www.healthiergeneration.org
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Testimony
Senate Bill 2354

Tuesday February 27, 2007
House Education Committee

Amy Heuer
President-Elect North Dakota Association for Health,
Physical Education, Recreation and Dance (NDAHPERD)

6ood morning Chairwoman Kelsch and members of the committee. My name is
Amy Heuer. I am the President-Elect of the North Dakota Association of
Health, Physical Education, Recreation and Dance and a teacher of Physical
Education. I am here in support of Senate Bill 2354, This bill will allow High
School students the option of taking physical education each year while in
high school.

Physical Education is not what it used to be. Students are taught in 5 main
subject areas, or Standards. Our state's PE Standards are Movement
Forms, Maintaining Physical Fitness, Behavior and Physical Activity and
Benefits of Physical Activity. We measure those standards against
benchmarks like all other Academic curriculum areas.

Some of these benchmarks include:

* understanding the physiological principles governing fitness
maintenance and improvement;

= understanding how various factors affect physical activity
preferences;

= knowing how to monitor and adjust activity levels to meet personal
fitness needs;

» using principles of teamwork to achieve a common goal;

» understanding the concept of sportsmanship and the importance of
responsible behavior.

With the passage of this bill, students will have the opportunity to develop
the healthy habits of physical activity. This will increase their life
expectancy by reducing their risk of diabetes, heart disease, obesity,
osteoporosis and other diseases associated with a sedentary life style. The
lack of these habits has caused this generation to be the first on record
that will not live past the age of their parents.



PE isn't throwing out a basketball or kickball anymore. We are able to use
technology such as pedometers, heart rate monitors, and TriFit computer
systems to measure activity and fitness levels, as well as to develop fitness
plans and goals. We teach students about proper nutrition, teamwork, goal
setting, and respect for themselves and others. If they are not offered the

opportunity to develop these skills, what type of student are we sending out
into the world?

Physical education should not be compared to, or confused with, other
physical activity experiences such as intramural or recreational endeavors. A
quality physical education program provides learning opportunities,
appropriate instruction, meaningful and challenging content for all children.
Students do learn skills for lifetime activities such as; social dance, golf,
tennis, bicycling, snowshoeing and outdoor recreation. Learning these skills
follows a developmentally appropriate program with regular assessment to
monitor and reinforce student learning.

You will hear arguments against this bill that include statements like “if it is
offered, only the athletes will take it". That statement is pure conjecture.
In redlity, at Bismarck High School, where Senior Phy. Ed is an elective, 80%
of seniors are taking Phy Ed. They had to offer it also as an early bird
elective, because so many students wanted to take it and were already full
with classes during the day. The total number of Seniors that take Phy Ed is
330 out of 414 students. Many of these aiso take a second choice such as
weight training, personal fitness, and physical management.

Another argument you will hear is that the smaller schools are unable to
provide space and staff fo cover this extra offering. Again, not as difficult
as they will lead you to believe. At Wilton Public Schools, Vicky Bender is
the PE and Health teacher. Her classes include middle and high school
health, and K-12 PE. With that entire course load, and one gymnasium, she is
able to teach elementary PE, middle school PE, required gth grade PE, and
stifll offer each semester an elective PE for grades 10-12.

As the President-Elect of North Dakota AHPERD, I am asking you to
consider the future of our youth and our state. Do what is best for our
students, both physically and academically. By keeping our students active
through regular physical education classes throughout high school, you will
be allowing them the necessary opportunities to become better students and




more productive citizens for the state of North Dakota. I would like o ask
the Education Committee for a "pass” recommendation for Senate Bill 2354.

Additional information sources:

PE4Life at: hitp://www pedlife.org/

National Coalition for Promoting Physical Activity:
http.//www.neppa.org/landmarkreports.asp

American Alliance for Physical Education, Recreation and Dance:
http://www.achperd.org/index.cfm
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Lois M. Mauch, MS
Physical Education Specialist &
Progress for Physical Education (PEP) Coordinator
for
Fargo Public Schools

Good morning Chairperson Kelsch and members of the committee. My name is
Lois Mauch. I am the Physical Education Specialist for Fargo Public Schools
and the Coordinator for the Progress for Physical Education Act for Fargo
Schools. I am here in support of Senate Bill 2354. This bill will allow High
School students in North Dakota the opportunity to have physical education
as a part of their course studies every year in high school.

I would like To address a research project that we were able to do in Fargo
that addresses the correlation between physical activity and academic
achievement. The purpose of the study was to describe associations
between nutrition/physical activity (PA) behaviors, fitness tests, and body
mass index (BMI) with academic measures. The methodology consisted of
sample Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) questions that pertained to
nutrition and physical activity habits, height, weight, and fitness
measurements of muscular strength, muscular endurance, cardiovascular
endurance and Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) reading and math
scores. Responses were matched to fitness tests (mile run, curl-ups, and
push-ups), height, weight and academic scores (MAP Reading and Math)

The results showed that for reading scores a negative impact with a greater
number of hours watching television and more cans of sweetened beverages.
For math scores a positive impact was seen with more days of vigorous
activity, more sports teams in the past year, passing the mile run.

This research demonstrates the importance of having more activity time for
our students. By showing the correlation of increased academic progress
and students who have better mile times and are stronger. They watch




less TV, they show an increase in involvement with sports teams, and most
importantly more frequent vigorous activity. By offering physical education
more often the academic achievement was increased.

Today's Physical Education focuses on Student engagement. By offering
quality physical education programs, we can engage our students in taking
ownership in their lifestyle. At the 9™ grade level, a Personal Fitness could
be the focus for the students. It includes concepts that teach our students
the knowledge and applications of healthy living habits. By offering four
years of physical education to our high school students we will have the
necessary time to require a personal fitness course for our freshman as a
prerequisite to their 10™ grade physical education which will focus on the
development of skills for lifetime activities. At the Junior and Senior year
students engage in a personal fitness program and answer Essential
Questions such as:

Why is obesity at an all time high despite all the available information?
Can a fitness program be good for one person and not for another? Why?
What does fitness look like?

What's the difference between sport and fitness?

4 € ¢ ¢ <«

Students will know..
v How to figure out there personal heart rate zone in order to monitor
their heart rate to ensure safety while exercising.
The five health-related fitness components
How good healthy habits influence personal fithess decisions.
The Principles of training and how they influence personal fitness

Students will be able fo..

v Program and download a heart rate monitors

Interpret results of their personal fitness assessments
Assess the 5 components of fitness

Set realistic goals

v
v
v
None of this is possible with the small amount of time we now offer to our

students in High School. By supporting this bill we will have a comprehensive
physical education program for all high school students.




. We are dealing with obesity crises. Now is the time to act! Ensure that
all our North Dakota high school students have the opportunity to
participate in a quality physical education program throughout their four
high school years.

As a strong proponent for the future of a Healthier America, I am asking
you to consider the future of our youth and our state. By keeping our
students’ active through regular physical education classes throughout high
school, you will allow them the necessary opportunities o become better
students and more productive citizens for our military, professions, and
society.

I would like to ask the Education Committee for a "pass” recommendation for
Senate Bill 2354,

Lois M. Mauch, MS
Physical Education Specialist



California Department of Education Study
December 10, 2002

2001 Grade 5 SAT 9 and Physical Fitness
Scores
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«  The height of each bar shows the average (median) SAT-9 national percentile rank
of those students with a particular fitness score.

< Higher academic achievement is associated with higher levels of fitness in grade 5.

**  Students in grade S who meet minimum fitness levels in three or more physical
fitness areas show the greatest gains in academic achievement.

% The relationship between academic achievement and fitness in grade 5 was greater
in mathematics than in reading, particularly at high fitness levels.

%+ The test that was used, Fitnessgram, uses criterion-referenced standards to evaluate
fitness. These standards represent a level of fitness that offers some degree of
protection against diseases that result from sedentary living. Achievement of the
fitness standards is based upon a test score falling in the Healthy Fitness Zone (HFZ).
Each of the six tasks measures a different aspect of fitness, and the HFZ represent
minimal levels of satisfactory achievement on the tasks.
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2001 Grade 7 SAT 9 and Physical Fitness
Scores
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The height of each bar shows the average (median) SAT-9 national percentile rank of
those students with a particular fitness score.

Higher academic achievement is associated with higher levels of fitness in grade 7.

Students in grade 7 who meet minimum fitness levels in three or more physical
fitness areas show the greatest gains in academic achievement.

The relationship between academic achievement and fitness in grade 7 was greater in
mathematics than in reading, particularly at high fitness levels.

The test that was used, Fitnessgram, uses criterion-referenced standards to evaluate
fitness. These standards represent a level of fitness that offers some degree of
protection against diseases that result from sedentary living. Achievement of the
fitness standards is based upon a test score falling in the Healthy Fitness Zone (HFZ).
Each of the six tasks measures a different aspect of fitness, and the HFZ represent
minimal levels of satisfactory achievement on the tasks.
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Grade 9 SAT 9 and Physical Fithess Scores
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The height of each bar shows the average (median) SAT-9 national percentile rank
of those students with a particular fitness score.

Higher academic achievement is associated with higher levels of fitness in grade 9.

Students in grade 9 who meet minimum fitness levels in three or more physical
fitness areas show the greatest gains in academic achievement.

The relationship between academic achievement and fitness in grade 9 was greater
in mathematics than in reading, particularly at high fitness levels.

The test that was used, Fitnessgram, uses criterion-referenced standards to evaluate
fitness. These standards represent a level of fitness that offers some degree of
protection against diseases that result from sedentary living. Achievement of the
fitness standards is based upon a test score falling in the Healthy Fitness Zone (HFZ).
Each of the six tasks measures a different aspect of fitness, and the HFZ represent
minimal levels of satisfactory achievement on the tasks.
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North Dakota Physical Education Standards and Benchmarks

SUMMARY OF GRADES 9 — 12 BENCHMARKS

Standard 1: MOVEMENT FORMS

Students use a variety of movement forms.

12.1.1 Use advanced sport-specific skills in selected physical activities.
12.1.2 Use advanced skills in complex physical activities.

Standard 2: MOVEMENT CONCEPTS

Students use movement concepls and principles in the development of motor skifls.
12.2.1 Understand biomechanical* concepts that govern different types of movement.
12.2.2 Understand how sport psychology* affects the performance of physical
activities.

12.2.3 Understand the physiological principles governing fitness maintenance and
improvement.

Standard 3: BENEFITS OF PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

Students understand the benefits of regular physical activity.

12.3.1 Understand factors that impact participation in physical activity.

12.3.2 Understand how various factors affect physical activity preferences.

12.3.3 Understand long-term physiological benefits of regular participation in physical
activity.

Standard 4: MAINTAINING PHYSICAL FITNESS*

Students understand how to maintain a health-enhancing level of physical fitness*.
12.4.1 Understand components of health-related fitness™ and their relationship to
gender and age.

12.4.2 Know how to monitor and adjust activity levels to meet personal fithess needs.
12.4.3 Understand how to maintain a healthy, active lifestyle.

Standard 5: BEHAVIOR AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

Students use responsible personal and social behavior in physical activity settings.
12.5.1 Use leadership and follower roles, when appropriate, in accomplishing group
goals in physical activities.

12.5.2 Use principles of teamwork to achieve a common goal.

12.5.3 Understand the potentially dangerous consequences of participation in physical
activity.

12.5.4 Understand the role of sport and physical activities in a diverse world.

12.5.4 Understand the concept of sportsmanship and the importance of responsible
behavior.
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Guest Viewpoint: Healthy students perform better in school
By Bill Potts-Datema

9/24/02 — Communities across America suffer from a health crisis costing billions of dollars
annually and causing more than 4,600 deaths every day. Every segment of society is
affected. Government strains to bear the burden. No family is untouched.

The causes of this crisis are familiar-slow, silent killers, including cardiovascular disease,
cancer, and diabetes. These chronic diseases are among the most prevalent, costly, and
preventable of all health problems.

The seeds of these chronic diseases are sown through unhealthy behavior initiated during
childhood and youth. Poor and inadequate nutrition, inactivity, smoking, and other risky
behavior are primary contributors to premature disability and death, creating staggering
human and economic costs.

While these problems require attention from all of society, school board members and
educators can take a powerful leadership role in finding solutions. Every school day,
approximately 53 million young people attend school in the United States. For 13 years,
schools play a critical role in children's lives, enabling them 1o establish and maintain

healthy behavior.

Of course, the primary role of schools is to foster academic achievement. As a former
teacher and staff member of a state department of education, I understand well the demands
of school reform and the pressures on school boards to find innovative ways to enable
students to perform to high standards and expectations. Any solution must include
educational achievement as a priority.

But, fortunately, there are many opportunities for education and public health to be partners
in search of solutions. Schools can teach knowledge and behavior that not only will foster
healthy lifestyles but will better prepare students to learn. School board members are
uniquely positioned to take leadership roles in this effort.

Research increasingly supports the critical link between health and learning. For example,

new data clearly show that when students receive proper nutrition, they perform better in the
classroom:

* Numerous studies link participation in school breakfast programs with increased




achievement as measured by standardized test scores and grades.

- » Participation in school food programs also has a positive effect on psychosocial outcomes,
leading to lower levels of anxiety, hyperactivity, depression, and psychosocial dysfunction.

* Other factors, including absenteeism, tardiness, class participation, and suspension rates
are affected positively.

* Dietary iron deficiency can lead to a shortened attention span, irritability, fatigue, and
difficulty with concentration—all detriments to learning.

Schools also can have a positive impact on students’ level of physical activity and thereby
also improve students’ classroom performance. Recent data show that:

* Student achievement can be maintained if schools provide more opportunities for physical
education, even if class time for academic subjects 1s cut back.

* Physical activity can help increase students' ability to concentrate and reduce disruptive
behavior, which can have a positive impact on academic achievement.

School board members can capitalize on the links between nutrition and physical activity
and student success. Here are some actions that work:

* Offer a nutritious breakfast program. Far too many children leave home without a
breakfast that provides the fuel they need for academic achievement. Without this start,
students fight a losing battle throughout the school day.

* Offer and promote healthy food options for students throughout school buildings,
including the cafeteria, at student clubs and other co-curricular meetings, and at dances and
other social events. Promote fresh fruit, milk, water, and fruit juice consumption and limtit
access to foods high in sugar and fat content.

» Provide high-quality physical education and appropriate physical activity programs for all
students at all ages.

* Start a faculty and staff wellness program.

* Offer classes directed toward establishing and maintaining lifelong physical activity, Work
with the community to establish high-quality co-curricular phvsical activity programs.

* Encourage health education courses that teach students about nutritious eating.

This sounds basic, but a recent survey of high school student leaders conducted by the
National Association of Student Councils found that most respondents did not know how
many servings from each of the five major food groups a person should eat daily. And 65
percent of these student leaders said they wanted more information on the benefits of good

nutrition.



* Hold parent meetings to discuss nutrition, physical education, and physical activity
initiatives. Parents are often more engaged when they understand the issues and know what
they can do to help. Encourage them to model healthy eating and exercise habits. Review
the importance of a good breakfast and healthy snacks.

* Work with locally elected officials to help them understand the importance of good
nutrition and physical activity for children and youths. As elected officials, school board
members can speak as peers to state legislators.

We can and should work together to improve the ability of students to succeed in school
while helping them to establish and maintain healthy behavior that can prevent chronic
disease.

In that spirit of partnership, more than 30 education and health organizations, including
NSBA, are cosponsoring a national event, the "Healthy Schools Summit: Taking Action for
Children’s Nutrition and_Health,” to be held in Washington, D.C., Oct. 7-8. The event is
chaired by Dr. David Satcher, former U.S. Surgeon General. Laura Bush is the honorary
chair.

Local school board members and other education policymakers will be able to build upon
the actions taken at the summit,

State healthy schools teams are forming to advance the summit's mission at the state, school
district, and school- building levels. Each team will develop its own action plan to identify
and pursue its state's most important issues.

Working together, we can improve students’ health status and ability to achieve in school.
We can make a difference in our children's ability to lead long, healthy, happy, and
productive lives free of chronic disease.

School board members are important decision makers and opinion leaders in this critical
work. The actions we begin together can provide a healthier, more productive future for
America's children and youth.

Bill Potts-Datema is director of partrerships for children's health at the Harvard School of
Public Health.
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Guidelines for School Health Programs
to Promote Physical Activity: Summary
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Young people can build healthy bodies and establish healthy lifestyles by including physical
activity in their daily lives. However, many young people are not physically active on a regular
basis, and physical activity declines dramatically during adolescence. School and community
programs can help young people get active and stay active.

Benefits of Regular Physical Activity

e Studies show that regular physical activity in childhood and adolescence:'
- Improves strength and endurance.
- Helps build healthy bones and muscles.
- Helps control weight.
- Reduces anxiety and stress and increases self-esteem.
- May improve blood pressure and cholesterol levels.

In addition, young people say they like physical activity because it is fun; they do it with friends;
and it helps them learn skills, stay in shape, and look better.

Percentage of High School Students Participating in
Physical Activity and Physical Education, by Sex, 2005’

R S R e A T e

At least 60 minutes/day of physical activity® . 27&% 43 43»8%
Attended physical education-class daily * 29.0% . 37.1%

“Any kind of physical activity that increased heart rate and made them breathe hard some of
the time for at least 60 minutes per day on 5 or more of the 7 days preceding the survey
*Attended physical education classes 5 days in an average week when they were in school




Consequences of Physical Inactivity

e Inactivity during childhood and adolescence
increases the likelihood of being inactive as an
adult. Adults who are less active are at greater
risk of dying of heart disease and developing
diabetes, colon cancer, and high blood
pressure.'

Overweight Among Youth

e The prevalence of overweight among children
aged 6-11 has more than doubled in the past
20 years, increasing from 7% in 1980 to 18.8%
in 2004.°

e Children and adolescents who are overweight
are more likely to be overweight or obese as
adults; overweight adults are at increased risk
for heart disease, high blood pressure, stroke,
diabetes, some types of cancer, and gallbladder
disease.’

Physical Activity Among Young People

e Thirty-six percent of high school students had
participated in at least 60 minutes/day of
physical activity on 5 or more of the 7 days
preceding the survey.”

o Sixty-four percent of high school students
participated in sufficient vigorous physical
activity, and 27% participated in sufficient
moderate physical activity.”

e The percentage of high school students who
attended physical education classes daily
decreased from 42% in 1991 to 25% in 1995,
and has remained stable at that level until 2005
(33%). In 2005, 45% of 9" grade students but
only 22% of 12" grade students attended
physical education class daily.”

e Among the 54% of students who attended
physical education classes, 84% actually
exercised or played sports for more than 20
minutes during an average class.?

Parcent ovarweight BMI > 95% percentile

Percentage

Percentage of U.S. Children and Adolescents Who Were Overweight*
1963- 2004“

1963-1979 19711974 1976-1980 1988-1994 1999-2000 2001-2002 2003-2004

* 295" parcantile for BMI (Body Moss Index) by age and sex based on 2000 CDC BMiHor-oge growth charks;
** Data for 1963-70 are anly for children (oges 6-11 years) from 1943-45 and only for adolascants
(oges 12-17 yoors) from 1964-70.
Notional Canter for Heolth Stafishics, CDC

Percentage of High School Students Who Attended
Physmul Education Classes Dcnly, 1991-2005
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Young people can benefit from being physically
active on most, if not all, days of the week. 3
This should include both moderu;p und wgorous,.?:j‘
physn:ol achvm/ :

Examples of moderaie achvdy lnclude

A

e Brisk walking : i 3
e Bicycling :

o Playing actively

» Dancing btk
Examples of vigorous achvﬂy include: -

o Running

e Jumping rope
e In-line or rolling skating
o Skipping




CDC's Guidelines for Schools to Promote
Lifelong Physical Activity

CDC's Guidelines for School and Community
Programs to Promote Lifelong Physical Activity Among
Young People were developed in collaboration with
experts from other federal agencies, state agencies,
universities, volunteer organizations, and professional
associations. They are based on an extensive review of
research and practice.

Key Principles
The guidelines state that physical activity programs for
young people are most likely to be effective when they:

e Emphasize enjoyable participation in physical
activities that are easily done throughout life.

e Offer a diverse range of noncompetitive and
competitive activities appropriate for different
ages and abilities.

e Give young people the skills and confidence they
need to be physically active.

e Promote physical activity through all components of
a coordinated school health program and develop
links between school and community programs.

Recommendations
The guidelines include 10 recommendations for
ensuring quality physical activity programs.

Establish policies that promote enjoyable, lifelong
physical activity.

e Schools should require daily physical education
and comprehensive health education (including
lessons on physical activity) in grades K-12.

e Schools and community organizations should
provide adequate funding, equipment, and
supervision for programs that meet the needs
and interests of all students.

Provide physical and social environments that
encourage and enable young people to engage in
safe and enjoyable physical activity.

o Provide access to safe spaces and facilities and
implement measures to prevent activity-related

. injuries and illnesses.

e Provide school time, such as recess, for
unstructured physical activity, such as jumping
rope.

e Discourage the use or withholding of physical
activity as punishment.

e Provide health promotion programs for school
faculty and staff.

Implement sequential physical education
curricula and instruction in grades K-12 that:

e Emphasize enjoyable participation in lifetime
physical activities such as walking and dancing,
not just competitive sports.

e Help students develop the knowledge, attitudes,
and skills they need to adopt and maintain a
physically active lifestyle.

e Follow the National Standards for Physical
Education.

e Keep students active for most of class time.

Implement health education curricula and
instruction that:

e Feature active learning strategies and follow
the National Health Education Standards.

e Help students develop the knowledge, attitudes,
and skills they need to adopt and maintain a
healthy lifestyle.

Provide extracurricular physical activity
programs that offer diverse, developmentally
appropriate activities—both noncompetitive
and competitive—for all students.

Encourage parents and guardians to support
their children's participation in physical activity,

to be physically active role models, and to include
physical activity in family events.




Provide training to enable teachers, coaches,

recreation and health care staff, and other
school and community personnel to promote
enjoyable, lifelong physical activity among
young people.

Assess the physical activity patterns of

young people, refer them to appropriate physical
activity programs, and advocate for physical
activity instruction and programs for young
people.

Provide a range of developmentally
appropriate community sports and recreation
programs that are attractive to all young people.

. Regularly evaluate physical activity instruction,

programs, and facilities.
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Department of Public Instruction

Madam Chair and members of the Committee — I’'m Valerie Fischer, Director of School
Health for the Department of Public Instruction. On behalf of the Department, 1 am here
to speak in support of SB 2354.

Teacher availability to teach physical education is substantiated by the ND Education
Standards and Practices Board (ESPB), who do not consider physical education a
teacher shortage area since there are more graduates than openings. This is true for the
past several years, as well as projections for the next several years (ESPB, February
2007). According to data submitted by schools this school year, there are 1122
licensed staff currently teaching with a physical education major and 543 licensed
staff teaching with a physical education minor (DPI, February 2007).

[n the discussions during the 2005 session, we heard concerns expressed over ...
o the lack of physical space (for some schools, the gymnasium becomes the cafeteria
. for 2-3 hours each day);

e the requirement that PE be offered to each grade (no, under this bill, PE would be
offered annually and any / all students could participate, not a required class for
seniors, juniors, €tc.);

¢ the curriculum content would need to change from year to year (yes, as it does for
all subjects offered annually like math, English, etc.).

The Department acknowledges issues for some schools and we are willing to work

with these schools to provide information and technical assistance to identify creative

ways to provide annual PE.

The attachments provided with my testimony include information regarding what
schools reported to DPI regarding their PE offerings for the current year. I'd like to
indicate a few points to enable you to better interpret the information:

e Reporting errors do exist (i.e., Harvey actually has 33 seniors, not the reported
145) that have yet to be corrected;

e In the right columns, the PE enrollment will sometimes exceed the Total School
enrollment. This may reflect home education students taking PE or students taking
multiple PE classes;

e On page three, you’ll see the Division of Independent Study has no school

. enrollment listed — they serve thousands of students and the enrollment numbers



change daily. Additionally, their structure is such that all students are identified as
seniors — this affects the final column totals;

e Some middle schools are included as they offer 9" grade (i.e., page 1 — Simle
Middle School) — expect to see 0°s for grades 10-12;

e This report does not include competitive sports — no PE credit is given for
participation in extra curricular sports.

According to the ND Educational Directory for the 2006-07 school year, ND has
33,827 students in grades 9-12 (public and non-public). North Dakota has 198 public
K-12 districts — 169 accredited public high schools (plus 18 non-public and
residential).

This report summarizes that 189 school buildings (representing 173 public & non
public districts) offered PE this year to 23,945 students. In 2005, a similar report for
HB 1048 indicated 13,649 students were offered PE. While that number increased by
10,000 this year, the data still identifies more than 10,000 students are not in PE this
year. As district policy on what coursework is required is not provided to DPI, we
have no way of knowing what is required. This table is merely showing enrollment for
the current year.

Legislators have previously acknowledged the issues surrounding youth and health -
this issue is not going away - we need to collectively address the most appropriate
options for public policy. This bill is a small step towards addressing youth obesity by
increasing physical activity —initiating life long positive habits which will move all
students towards better health. We need to demonstrate to students that physical
education and activity is as much an immediate and life long skill as math and English
— we tend to emphasis academics because we think young people will naturally take
care of themselves — but they don’t. Asking schools to offer physical education every
year throughout high school helps to create a supportive infrastructure for North
Dakota’s children so that they can learn to assimilate regular physical activity into
their everyday lives.

From all that you have heard today, we believe you’ll see how critical physical
education is as part of a comprehensive curriculum. Promotion of healthy students has
long been fundamental to the educational experience. In the best interest of our
students and their health, I hope you will vote to increase physical education
offerings. This concludes my testimony supporting SB 2354. I’d be happy to answer
any questions you may have.

Attachments: Newsweek excerpt — January 25, 2007
DPI data re: schools who offer PE 2006-07




Excerpt from Newsweek magazine — January 25, 2007

This may be the first generation in which children hive a shorter life span than their parents. If
this were caused by a new virus or pathogen, or if some madman was harming our children, there
would be a call to action from most parents, an uprising and uproar. But it's not some external
germ or sinister force that's eating our young; it's what our young are eating—too much fat, salt
and sugar. And it's not only what they're doing, but also what they're not doing—a lack of
regular exercise.

Since 1970, the percentage of kids who are overweight or obese has risen almost fourfold, from
4.2 percent to 15.3 percent. Overweight kids have an estimated 70-80 percent chance of
becoming obese adults, and 65 percent of adults are overweight or obese.

The good news is that childhood obesity is almost completely preventable. And we don't have to
wait for a new drug or technology. We just have to put into practice what we already know.
Now, imagine you have an intervention that can help cure childhood obesity. It doesn't cost
anything, it's playful, fun and easy to learn, and the only side effects are good ones. It's called
exercise.

Obesity, childhood and otherwise, is an imbalance between energy intake and expenditure,
calories in and calories out. While several factors affect this equation, the ones we have the most
control over are what we eat and how much we exercise.

In my earlier NEWSWEEK columns, I described what you and your kids can eat to stay
healthy and wrote about efforts to make healthier beverages, snacks and foods available in
schools. Here, I want to focus on the exercise part of the equation.

With the rise in videogames and the lack of exercise in schools, fitness is going down and fatness
is going up. I was shocked to learn that only one state in the country—Illinois—mandates
physical education in schools. That's pitiful.

I called my friend Dr. Kenneth Cooper, one of the pioneers of preventive medicine who coined
the term "aerobics,” and asked him why. "When we went to school many years ago, 90 percent
of us had physical education,” he said. “Now it's just reversed—only 10 percent of schools have
physical education. Why can't we change this? One of the single most important things that
America could do 1o reverse this trend is to put physical education back in schools and mandate
it for all students.”

I also spoke with Jim Whitehead, who is vice president of the American College of Sports
Medicine and is serving this year as president of the National Coalition for Promoting Physical
Activity. I asked him, "Why can't we pass laws that mandate physical education in every school?
What would have more public support than something that's proven to prevent something really

awful in kids?"

According to Whitehead, one of the unintended consequences of the No Child Left Behind Act
was to significantly reduce the number of schools offering physical education. Schools are



rewarded or punished based on results from standardized tests, so many schools are cutting
physical education out of the curriculum in order to spend more time teaching students to do well
on these tests. "The physical fitness of students is not one of the metrics used to incentivize
schools," he said, "so it worsens the trend of getting physical activity out of the school systems
on a national basis.”

Ironically, studies have shown that physical education in schools improves academic
performance as well as physical fitness. A study by the California Department of Education of
more than 350,000 fifth-grade students found a direct correlation between physical fitness and
SAT scores, with the most fit in the 71st percentile and the least fit in the 36th percentile—
almost half as much. When they looked at 322,000 seventh-grade students, they found an even
bigger gap—the most fit scored in the 66th percentile on their SAT tests whereas the least fit
scored in the 28th percentile.

Surely we can find some time in the academic curriculum for an hour of physical education each
day, or at least three times per week, especially since exercise improves academic performance.
Not every class is essential to our kids' academic development. As Paul Simon sang, "When I
think back on all the crap I learned in high school, it's a wonder I can think at all."

At the Woodland Elementary School in Kansas City, discipline incidents involving violence
decreased by 59 percent and the number of school suspension days decreased by 67 percent only
one year after returning physical education to fourth and fifth graders. According to Craig
Rupert, the school's principal, "It's not just the increased levels of fitness we are seeing in our
kids which has everyone excited. Students are also more motivated throughout the day, their
enthusiasm is way up, and discipline issues are way down."

What can we do? As Margaret Mead once wrote, "Never underestimate the power of a small
group of committed people to change the world. In fact, it is the only thing that ever has." We
need an uprising of concerned parents and other citizens to call their members of Congress. We
need 50 states to mandate physical education in K-8 schools, not just one state. Also, we need to
revise the No Child Left Behind act to incentivize rather than disincentivize regular physical
education in schools.

You can also contact your state legislators, which tend to respond if they hear from enough
concerned parents. For example, in California, where I live, Gov. Arnold Schwarzenegger's
2006-07 budget designated $500 million for physical education and the arts. Given the economic
and health consequences of childhood obesity, as well as the continued rise in health-care costs,
this is a wise investment in our most important national resource: our children. It's time to tell
our legislators to start exercising ... good judgment.

© 2006 Newsweek, Inc. URL: http://www.msnbc.msn.com/id/16814894/site/newsweek/
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We acknowledge that physical activity is a good thing.

We further acknowledge that most of us could do a better job of building more
exercise into our daily routines.

So, why are we up in opposition to this btll?

WE BELIEVE that discussion of any significant change in curriculum offerings is
premature. WE BELIEVE that such discussion should take place during the adequacy
phase on the future of education in North Dakota.

During that phase we believe we must answer the following questions:

1. What is an adequate education?

2. How do we ensure that an adequate education is delivered to every student in our
state? and
3. Lastly, how much is that defined adequate education going to cost and how are

we going to fund it?

WE BELIEVE that the question of adding more units of physical education should

take place in the context of these adequacy deliberations.

Some preliminary discussion regarding “what is an adequate education™ has already
taken place in the p-16 meetings. That discussion resulted in several bills being put forth
this session including HB1194 and SB2309. Both of those bills listed graduation
requirements. Both of those bills prescribe | unit of physical education.

What will future deliberations conclude when the question is asked “IHow many units
of physical education should be included in the definition of an adequate education™?

If this bill requiring 2 units of physical education is passed and, for example, if %2
unit of health and ¥4 unit of physical education is determined to be adequate, would the
state still require school districts to “make available” another 1-1/2 units of physical
education? Will the language “make available” even exist after an adequate education is

defined and the apparent graduation requirements are determined?



We repeat our position that any significant change in curriculum offering
requirements is premature and that those discussions should take place in the context of

the upcoming adequacy discussions,

So in the meantime. WHAT?

We support Resolution 3046 which directs the Legislative Council to study ways in
which various public and privatc entities can cooperate to promote healthy lifestyles for
children...”

This type of cooperative effort is important because research has concluded that what
students do or don’t do in physical education is only a small part of the childhood obesity
problem.

That research states that the average American child watches 4 hours of television
daily with some studies broadening that “television” term to include computers and video
games. A study by researchers at John Hopkins School of Medicine along with the CDC
and the National Institute of Health point out that the average high school graduate will
likely spend 15,000 to 18,000 hours in front of a television set, but only 12,000 hours 1n
school.

WE BELIEVE that it is going to take a united effort of health care professionals, the
Department of Health, DP, parents, schools — “the whole village™ to effectively address
the problem of childhood obesity.

The good news is that this effort can begin today in each of our communities. The
good news is that this effort to combat childhood obesity can begin today in each of your
communities if someone, maybe you, provides the initial leadership.

If you disagree with my analysis and think we should move ahead and implement this
legislation we want you o do so understanding the implications to school districts for
offering yearly units of physical education. Doug has the results of a survey showing
some of that impact on our schools.

As you listen to his report we ask you to keep in mind that if the emphasis is on
“physical activity” The Division of Distance Learning will not be much help to our

schools in fulfilling this requirement.



courses they offer at the 9-12 level has any physical activity and that activity is described

. In our correspondence with the Division it appears that onty 1 of the 5 health/phy ed

as quote “exercises like pushups, jogging, leg raise. (with the added comment) They are

very basic.”
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Testimony on SB 2354
By
Dr. M. Douglas Johnson, Executive Director—NDCEL

Chairwoman Kelsch and members of the House Education Committee, for the record my
name is Doug Johnson and I represent the NI Council of Educational Leaders. | am here to testify
in opposition to SB 2354,

The NDCEL philosophically agrees that making available additional physical education to
every high school student during each school year would be a benefit for our students. Making
physical educatjon courses available to students each year would certainly help address issues of
obesity and the teaching of living healthy lifc styles However, it is our belief that offering
additional courses in physical education is a choice that needs to be made at the local level, based
on local needs, and decided by the individual district’s ability to accommodate their choice to
support these additional classes. With the adoption of SB 2354, all school districts would have (o
make available a half unit of physical education cach school year. This, in essence, becomes an
unfunded mandale as it increases the course offerings for every school that currently does not offer
these course opportunities to their students. This will have a significant impact on school district
budgets and facilities.

On Friday, February 23, the NDCEL conducted a survey with superintendents to determine
what impact SB 2354 would have on school districts if 14 credit of physical education was (o be
made available during each school year. In addition, the survey assumed that a different physical
education course must be offered for each year. This assumption was based on testimony provided
by Anita Decker of the NDDPI during hearings on HB 1048 which had the same language where

she stated:



“Courses can be configured as needed by each school. For example, a small
school may offer one physical education class for all grade levels and one health
class for all grade levels. Course content would change each year so that students
are indeed offered four different classes. Health courses can be offered in any
one year of four disciplines — physical education, health education, family and
consumer science and science. Again, course content would change each year.
This is not unlike band, for example: each school offers band but they don’t play
the same music for four years.”

Anita Decker, January 19", 2003 testimony on HB 1048 — House Education Commitiee

Further, the survey assumed, for discussion purposes and uniformity in responses, that all students
in the school would elect to take the ¥4 unit of physical education each year. Finally, the survey
asked superintendents to provide how many staff would need to be hired education, what the
estimated cost of those hires would be to the district, and what other impacts such as classroom
space, curriculum materials, and scheduling conflicts would be created if they had to offer physical
education each year and all students elected or were required to take physical education for all four
years of high school.

School superintendents representing over 60 school districts from across our state responded
to the survey. They estimated that if all students would take physical education in their schools
every year these responding districts would need to hire nearly 41 health/physical education
teachers to meet the requirement. Further, they estimate the cost of hiring additional staff to meet
the requirements of SB2354 to be nearly $1,235,000. When asked what other impacts this would
have on their school districts, superiniendents cited, the scheduling conflicts, classroom space and
the elimination of electives to offer these newly required courses as the biggest obslacle they face in
the implementation of the law as SB 2354 is currently written. The summarized responses from the
superintendents are mcluded in my testimony, but here are just a few of their comments:

“Physical activity is a personal choice that people make and my opinion is that forcing students to take PE
every year will not have a positive impact on their future decision making. The financial implications




I

. for small schoels are going to be tremendous - staffing and space requirements may be overwhelming for
some!”

“An extra Phy Ed would take away some students for electives, music, band and CTE. At what point do
we not have class. A class of 2 or 3 students would not be good for either the student nor our budget.”

“l would have the room , but 1 would not have an open period for the studenis. If they are taking
advanced classes they do not have free periods. If | were to offer the class only students with study halls

would be able to take it. 1t would also be a schedule nightmare because no teachers have free period. The
gym is only open the first period and a half in the mornings.”

“By requiring additional PE requirements, other elective courses will suffer to the point that teachers of
elective classes could find their teaching contract reduced.”

Chairperson Kelsch and members of the House Education Committee, | encourage your
commiliee to carefully consider the fiscal implications that this billl will have on many school
districts in out state and to give SB 2354 a Do Not Pass vote.. Providing additional classes in
physical education is a choice that needs Lo be made at the local level, based on local needs, and
decided by the individual district’s ability to accommodate their choice to support these additional

. classes. Madame Chair this concludes my testimony. At this time | would be happy to answer any

questions that you have in regard to my testimony.
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Management |, My. Account;:

Design Survey Show All Pages and Questions 4

below. Click 'Add' to create Your own custom theme.
Theme: Yeliow Metal =

Survey on Offering Phy Ed Every Year (SB 2354) [ Tita ) £d Numbering ) add Logi

iSurvey on Offering Phy Ed Every Year (SB 2354) ((&dtt Page ][ Dalata Page )( CopyrMove |(add Logh

To change the look of your survey, select a choice
Directions for Completing the Survey:

Please take a few moments of your time to complete the following survey. The |
questions relate to your perception the requirement of making available 1/2 unit |
of physical education at the high school level every year impacts financial,

staffing, space issues.
{

"] DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION (£t o) et s o) i ]

(Add Question] [ad Paga)

E

e

Mark the demographic characteristiés that apply to you.

(Add Question] [Add Page]

Edit |{ Delote || CopyiMave |
1. NDASA Region

NW : SwW .
Region NE Region Region SE Region
Response J W, , wud

[Add Question] [acd Page

Edit || Delete I Copy/Move l

2. City

(Add Question] [ Add Page |

. Edit || Dalets || Copy/Move |

3. District
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(Add Question| [ Add Page |

. J ["Edit Page |( Dalato Page ]( Copy/Move ][ Add Lagic |
3

[Add-Question) ["Add Page’)

SurveyMonkey.com - Powerful tool for creating web surveys. Online survey software made easy!

Edit [Elah]@ymwr]
4. How many units
(.5 to 2.0) of
physical education
do you currently
make available to
students?

Total Units
QOffered

| Edit [ Delete || Copyiiave|
5. How many units
of physical
education do you
require highs
school students to
take? (.5 -2.0)
Total
Required
Units

Add Page:

Edit || Dalete |[ Copy/Mave |

6. Assuming all
students request to
ake physical
education every year
how many additional
physical education
staff would you need
o add?

Total Addition
Staff

('add Question] [ Add Page |

i Edit || Delate || Copy/Mave |

‘ for physical education?

Total Additional Staffing Cost

7. What would be the estimated cost to add these additional staffing requirements

Edit || Datete || CopyMove |

8. What additioanal space requirements would be needed to accommodate having
all students take phy ed yearly?

[Add Question)] [ Add Page ]

£dit |[ Datete || Copy/iove |

9. Please provide any additional comments that you believe would be helpful in
preparing testimony for SB 2354,

f Thank you for participating. Your feedback is valuable! [Edt Page ][ Delete Page |[ Copy/Move

[Add Question] [ Add Page |
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